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  [9.34 am] 

 

SJH:   Good morning, please be seated.  Well, welcome to this prehearing.  Just 

to outline that, for those who haven’t been to one of these before, the 

purpose of this is to tease out any outstanding issues there must be, 5 

look at the scope of the hearing, consider procedural matters and 

hearing procedures and there have already been hearing procedures that 

are published online on our website.  So it is a question of whether they 

are simply applied, or, if there are good reasons, why we may amend 

those to some extent.   10 

 

  [9.35 am] 

 

 We will also look to mediation and expert conferencing and if I can 

distinguish between those.  Expert conferencing is where expert 15 

witnesses are being called by parties and they have a facilitated 

conferencing with an experienced person to an attempt to narrow issues 

and to get agreement if at all possible. 

 

 Mediation is a somewhat different process which will involve the lay 20 

submitters in an attempt to resolve the issues you may have or at least 

narrow those, before we get to the hearing. 

 

 We will also put in place a preliminary indicative schedule and at the 

moment the intention is to start this particular chapter hearing on 25 

30 March, and we will then deal with documents to be filed, and I 

could mention that we have a Friend of the Submitter here today, 

Mr Richard Ball, who is at the back of the room.  He is available to 

help any of you submitters that need advice to understand things like 

the difference between evidence and submission, how they should be 30 

framed and matters such as that.  So do not hesitate to contact Mr Ball 

at the end of this pre-conference if there are any particular issues that 

you need to make.   

 

 Now, we normally adopt a practice, nothing should be read into it, but 35 

we get the lawyers to indicate who they are representing first and we 

tend to hear from them first, particularly Mr Winchester and Ms Scott 

on behalf of the Council, because it is they that are appearing to 

propose the published chapter to us and then we will come to the lay 

submitters.   40 

 

 If you would just pause while we give you a hand-held microphone, if 

you would identify your name and your submitter number, if you have 

it before you speak to us.  The reason being is that we have a full 

transcript of this that will be taken down, typed and can I indicate a full 45 

transcript of everything we do is available on our website and is usually 
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posted by about 9 or 10 am the next morning, sometimes earlier.  All 

the other documents, for the benefit of the lay submitters, that we 

receive are also published online.  I have to say we don’t have the 

easiest of websites at the moment but it is being redesigned and we will 

have a better one in place within a very short period of time.  5 

 

 So I think if we could just go the Council to announce their 

appearances please to start with and then I would ask you, 

Mr Winchester, just to briefly outline how you see the scope for us. 

 10 

MR WINCHESTER:   Good morning, sir, I appear with my learned friend, 

Ms Scott, for the Council.  Do you wish me to traverse issues from the 

Council’s perspective? 

 

SJH:   Not yet, I will record appearances first. 15 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, Mr Carranceja appearing Ms Silcock for the Crown 

and 22 government departments as listed in our submission, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I appear for Christchurch International Airport Limited, 

Lyttelton Port Company Limited, Nurse Maude Association and Gelita 25 

New Zealand Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS MARKS:   Sir, Ms Marks for Oakvale Farm Limited, Maurice R Carter 30 

Limited, Kauri Lodge, CDL Land Limited and the Canterbury 

Racecourse Reserve Trustees. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 35 

MS MEHLHOPT:  Ms Mehlhopt, sir, for the Canterbury Regional Council. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS ROGERS:   Sir, Ms Rogers, for Southern Response. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Mr Cleary for a number of submitters; the Retirement 

Villages Association, Archer Memorial Baptist Home, Independent 45 
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Fisheries Limited, Danne Mora Holdings Limited, Simmons and 

Kennedy, and Spencer Taylor and I think that is it. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MR BALL:  Richard Ball, Friend of the Submitters. 

 

  [9.40 am] 

 

MR HARDIE:   John Hardie, if it please the Panel, for Mebo Family Trust, RJ 10 

and LT Crozier, the Riccarton Kilmarnock Residents Association, 

Terrace Developments Limited, Highsted Properties Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Hardie. 

 15 

MS WALSH:   Sir, Ms Walsh for Ngāi Tahu Property Limited and the 

Runanga. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MR TAYLOR:   Graham Taylor representing Bromac Lodge Limited, 

Mercantile Trust, RJ and CB Sissons and Martin Harcourt. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you, Mr Taylor.  Now, we have swept up the legal 

representatives, thank you.  Now, Mr Winchester, you may like to 25 

outline the scope as you see it. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir.  Fundamentally all things residential are 

within scope from the Council’s perspective.  So there is an issue there 

immediately in terms of trying to confine the hearing or at least 30 

condense it and break it up into digestible chunks.   

 

 The key issues that the Council has identified in our submission, sir, are 

residential intensification around KACs and suburban centres, the new 

neighbourhood living zone and subdivision provisions and obviously 35 

the question of subdivision is going to be dealt with this afternoon but 

in terms of the new neighbourhood provisions, they really come as a 

complete package in terms of zoning, subdivision and land use 

controls.  So from the Council’s perspective it is considered appropriate 

to include those subdivision provisions as part of that package, sir. 40 

 

 One of the key issues raised by submissions are sustainability standards 

and the life stage standards and you may recall some examples of that 

from the strategic directions chapter. 

 45 
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 Also there is some focus on retirement villages and the express 

provisions which apply to retirement villages in the residential zones 

and those are really the key issues from the Council’s perspective, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Winchester, you will have seen the memorandum from Ngāi Tahu 5 

Properties and the concern, which is one that has arisen before, by the 

fact that we are only hearing part chapters, do you wish to address that 

now or after we have heard from Ms Walsh on that? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, I think it would probably be of more assistance to 10 

me, in terms of responding to any issues the Panel has got, to hear first 

from Ms Walsh.  I understand the issue raised in the memorandum and 

I will say there is a logic to the suggestion but perhaps just wait and see 

what questions the Panel has for Ms Walsh and then give the Council’s 

perspective. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 

 20 

SJH:   We will come back to this but there is a couple of concerns around there 

is a lot of not necessarily minor but matters that we expect could 

probably be resolved before the hearing, particularly between the 

Council and the Crown, which has been the case to date and there has 

been some very productive cooperative work around that. 25 

 

 And the other issue is around the clarification and narrowing of issues 

and whether that is a matter we perhaps even should hold another 

hearing on before we start this particular chapter, Mr Winchester? 

 30 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, depending upon the Panel’s indications of the 

likely duration of hearing and the amount of time available for it, I 

think that is probably sensible.  If we are going to start on 30 March 

that is a short week and the following week is a short week and so the 

ability to perhaps get through the entire hearing. 35 

 

SJH:   The week might be a little longer than you are expecting, 

Mr Winchester, particularly after Easter, we will be starting back on the 

Tuesday I think the schedule allows for. 

 40 

MR WINCHESTER:   Oh, yes, absolutely, yes. 

 

SJH:   But, no, I understand what you are saying. 
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  [9.45 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  I can indicate on the first matter discussions have 

been occurring between the Crown and the Council about matters 

raised in the Crown’s submission and there are informal discussions 5 

with a view to narrowing the issues between the Crown and the 

Council, working on aspects such as wording, looking at the statement 

of expectations and those sorts of things.  So that is effectively a 

standard process for most of the proposals but particularly given the 

importance of the residential proposals. 10 

 

SJH:   And there may be issues that arise following the delivery of strategic 

directions which is planned for the 26th. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, in terms of alignment with those directions, sir. 15 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, absolutely. 

 20 

SJH:   I think what would be helpful to the Panel would be the sooner we get a 

statement of issues the better but on the basis we treat it as a living 

document and that that can be refined as we go through expert 

conferencing and mediation with lay submitters and such like.   

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   So we will come back to that but you wouldn’t have any objection to 

that course? 

 30 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, to the extent that things are pretty dynamic and 

the intention is to present things as efficiently as possible, certainly 

from the Council’s perspective I think it is a very sensible idea, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, we have found that with natural hazards and it is a similar sort of 35 

approach to that that I think is the most helpful to everybody. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And really the key to it from the Council’s point of 

view, sir, is getting advance notice as soon as possible of the specific 

issues that the submitters want to talk about rather than simply we want 40 

to have a discussion about our submission.  That is understandable, but 

it is not necessarily that helpful in terms of the - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I think we can deal with that to some extent now, that if you and 

the Friend of the Submitter stay after this hearing and the lay submitters 45 

should all stay and we identify those where there is a question mark 
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over the specificity at the moment so we can nail that today because I 

think that would help everybody. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I don’t think there is a concern necessarily to the 

same extent about the specificity of relief sought in submissions, sir, it 5 

is more about if there is going to be mediation or discussions then some 

narrowing of - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, look, I have said this because we have a list in front of us of 

submitters and it does seem to me, going through them, that there is 10 

room to clarify more of the actual relief they are seeking and that is 

what I think needs clarifying for your perspective so that Council can 

address it and so will clarify what the issues will be at mediation.  So I 

think, given our timeframes are so short, I think while we have got 

everybody here, that is something we should try to achieve in the 15 

course of today. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I am happy to participate in that process. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   There is just one matter we should have dealt with before, not for you, 

Dr Mitchell has a declaration he needs to make in relation to one 25 

conflict of potential conflict.   

 

DR MITCHELL:   Thank you, sir.  I just need to acknowledge that my firm 

acts for Ryman Healthcare throughout the country and I won’t take any 

part in the process that relates to matters raised by them.  Thank you, 30 

sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  The Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.  As my learned friend indicated, sir, the 35 

Crown and the Council have had informal discussions in an attempt to 

narrow the issues.  I just want to signal from the Crown’s perspective, 

sir, that we would like to continue those discussions and with any other 

party that the Council choses to invite to informal discussions.  But 

furthermore, sir, the Crown would be happy to participate in any expert 40 

conferencing as well as mediation in any attempt to narrow issues 

further, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Is that a suggestion it may be useful that you stay for the 

session I am talking about after we conclude today? 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   I think I will, sir.  Yes, sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Appleyard? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   The only issue that I wanted to raise was whether there 5 

was potentially a subcategory of issues relating to intensification and 

residential rezoning within the Airport noise contour and we might 

need to think about how we are going to deal with those submissions.   

 

 The Airport’s primary submission is fairly generic but they have filed a 10 

number of further submissions opposing specific submitters seeking 

residential re-zonings and I am wondering whether that is a topic that 

could actually potentially be dealt with, you know, effectively on its 

own, and the Airport obviously would be prepared to participate in a 

mediation in respect of those matters. 15 

 

SJH:   Well, for ease of hearing and for ease for the submitters we will be 

carving it into blocks.  The intensification is one although most of that 

at the moment tends to relate on key activity centres and around 

suburban or neighbourhood centres - - - 20 
 

  [9.50 am] 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes. 

 25 

SJH:   - - - which means that some people are going to be attending more than 

one part of the hearing, but once we have carved that up, you will have 

to determine which parts you wish to attend and where it is most 

appropriate, but there will be no limitation on who appears in what bits. 

 30 

MS APPLEYARD:   No, no, I wasn’t thinking that, I was just wondering given 

that there was a large number of submitters effectively raising the same 

submission, the same case will be run effectively against them by the 

Airport, whether there was some ability to sort of group that issue 

somehow.  35 

 

SJH:   Well, as we have done previously with natural hazards and such like, 

natural groupings will just form part of the Secretariats setting of the 

hearing schedule so we will do that, thank you. 

 40 

 Ms Marks, Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Nothing, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Rogers, Mr Hardie? 45 
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MR HARDIE:   Well, sir, I am relating to overall things, probably just in the 

situation where I am with Ms Appleyard, appearing for the Mebo 

Family Trust which is my own residential house which is within the 

50 dBl contour submission put in which just suggested and supported 

the current zoning, it is for more intense development, it is an existing 5 

zoning for intense development for the University, but there has been a 

part of the Airport’s submission hidden in there, is an attempt now to 

bring a restriction on development within existing residential zones and 

not new residential development, so I think that is a distinctive different 

issue from the noise restrictions applying for new residential 10 

development. 

 

 I just want to make clear that there will be different issues which relate 

to where existing zones have been in place for a long period of time, 

and now the Airport has chosen through this process, to try and restrict 15 

the rights of the owners, but I’m there to have it dealt with as the Panel 

sees fit.  

 

SJH:   Mr Cleary, I am sorry I jumped over you and I should not have done so, 

but you have in a slightly different sense, the same issue I suspect? 20 

 

MR CLEARY:   It is precisely the same issue- - - 

 

SJH:   - - - as part of your brief? 

 25 

MR CLEARY:   Indeed, indeed.  Can I just mention my friend Mr Winchester, 

referred to retirement village provisions with retirement village being 

one of the key issues of the Retirement Village Association is 

obviously very keen to have some dialogue with the Council regarding 

the submission and there are a number of other quite similar 30 

submissions to the Association itself. 

 

SJH:   Well, it is a substantial part and it may well be that when we discuss this 

later, that when we deal with the hearing retirement, concerns can form 

a part, a subset of the hearing.  Ms Walsh? 35 

 

MS WALSH:   Sir, do you want me to address you on the procedural issue I 

have raised? 

 

SJH:   Yes, I think so, reading it, delaying the whole chapter is not particular 40 

edifying given our time lines as you will appreciate - - - 

 

MS WALSH:   No, indeed.  

 

SJH:   - - - and it seems your first option was probably the better one.  Part of 45 

the concern that the Panel would have is that if the second part of the 
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hearing on residential in some ways leads to substantive change, 

whether it has to be re-notified or how we pick up any submitters or 

residents that are affected and include them, but I think that is possibly 

more how we manage it as opposed to how we deal with it, but we will 

hear from you. 5 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir.  I think deferring just those parts that as identified in 

the memorandum, that relate to those sorts of submissions and Council 

are probably the best persons to identify those provisions.  If it is just 

those provisions which are delayed, I wasn’t proposing that the whole 10 

residential chapter be delayed at all, sir. 

 

SJH:   Right. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Walsh, you have seen what those provisions are? 15 

 

MS WALSH:   I can say that it will certainly in the new neighbourhood zone 

provisions.  In relation to the commercial chapter, just looking to the 

appendix in my memorandum, the commercial nodes at Prestons, but 

sir, I haven’t undertaken a study of all of the grey area of planning 20 

maps which are in phase 2, and there may be some other areas. 

 

  [9.55 am] 

 

 It will be those zones which are existing business zones so they will 25 

attract some new commercial zoning, but it so far as it relates to Ngai 

Tahu Property Limited, is just the commercial provisions at Prestons. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sir, another question I have and it is perhaps for 

Mr Winchester, but just in terms of whether or not this issue raised by 30 

Ngai Tahu is sensibly able to be ring-fenced or whether it could lead to 

complications in regard to other submitters? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, at the moment, it is the only party that has 

raised the issue.  If it led to a flood of similar requests, then we might 35 

be in spot of bother I suspect.  

 

 To the extent that it relates at the moment, really only to Prestons, it 

might be able to be ring-fenced.  I think there would be a concern if it 

extended to the entire new neighbourhood zone because there are other 40 

areas that would be impacted in that respect, but consistency in terms 

of the new neighbourhood zoning provisions, would be desirable across 

the zones. 

 



 Page 10 

  

Ch14: Residential (PHC) 16.02.15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So your view is that in a pragmatic sense there is some 

attraction to this approach and you don’t see it opening the flood gates 

of other issues? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, sir, not in the way it has been put to the Panel by 5 

my learned friend, Ms Walsh, and the Council sees there is some sense 

in what is being suggested, particularly, to the extent that the Council 

could identify the relevant provisions and simply set those aside for the 

moment. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you, Ms Walsh.  Mr Taylor? 

 

MR TAYLOR:   The four parties which I represent are all further submitters in 15 

relation to a request for rezoning on an area of land which is shown as 

being subject to phase 2.  The particular submissions have been 

summarised as the residential chapter planning map 44, but we are 

questioning really, as to whether or not inadvertently if that matter is 

going to be considered as part of this hearing, it has been summarised 20 

as part of the residential chapter, our position is that it should be 

viewed as part phase 2, and actually should be codified as part of phase 

2.  It raises the question as to scope of this hearing, (INDISTINCT 

2.48). 

 25 

SJH:   Mr Winchester, are you able to respond to that now or should you 

discuss it with Mr Taylor later? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:  I think I had better discuss it with Mr Taylor, sir, just to 

get a little bit more clarity around it.  I should have indicated in 30 

introduction that there are a number of “me-too” submissions about 

rezoning which should properly be the subject of specific consideration 

in phase 2.  So, there may be some crossover in to the issues that 

Mr Taylor has raised. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, they are the things that we are expecting now to take place about, 

Mr Winchester.  Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 40 

SJH:   All right, we will now go to the lay submitters.  If we just start at this 

end of the front row, we will walk along the front row and then row by 

row.  Thank you.  Is there anyone on this side that wishes to raise any 

issued, sorry? 

 45 
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MR MILLAR:   Darryl Millar, sir.  I’m for the University of Canterbury, 

Christchurch Polytechnic, Institute of Technology and Orion New 

Zealand.   

 

 Sir, we just have some scope issues, if I could raise with you.  5 

 

 The University of Canterbury, that site is subject to phase 2.  The 

University has filed submissions however, seeking some rezoning of 

land that is proposed to be rezoned residential in phase 1.  So the 

question arises as to whether that is a matter that will be heard as part 10 

of phase 1 hearings, or in phase 2. 

 

SJH:   Well, is it phase 1 land or phase 2 land? 

 

MR MILLAR:   Phase 1 land. 15 

 

SJH:   Right, well at the moment we would be required to hear it.  

 

MR MILLAR:   Right, similarly for the CPIT, sir, they have a similar situation 

which case, we will bring that evidence to the hearing. 20 

 

 Orion New Zealand, lodged submissions on the residential chapter, the 

industrial chapter, and the commercial chapter seeking some corridor 

protection rules around elements of their line networks. 

 25 

 Sir, our preference would be if we could, would be to present evidence 

at one hearing rather than repeating that evidence if there are other 

chapter hearings.  

 

SJH:   Well, I think we would be quite happy to hear the evidence over all three 30 

of those at the residential, it has obviously got to happen at the earliest 

possible opportunity, and then with those later chapters, you can 

identify, you simply rely on your earlier evidence or you might want to 

add to it. 
 35 

  [10.00 am] 

 

MR MILLAR:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 40 

 

MR EVANS:   Good morning, I am Andrew Evans, an architect, generally I 

would prefer to - - - 

 

SJH:   Do you know your submitter number? 45 
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MR EVANS:   No, sorry. 

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 

MR EVANS:   It might be under AE Architects as well.  My main interests are 5 

the sustainability in life stage rules which I hope would be put together 

into one package.  To some extent, the acoustic insulation rules just 

regarding roads, not the Airport, no interest in that, and then I have lots 

of smaller issues and suggestions that I put forward to the Council 

which, to tell the truth, I would rather not submit because it just would 10 

take a lot time and I am hoping that the Council will take them on 

board. 

 

SJH:   Well that clearly can be part of the mediation process and you can see 

where you get to, but you are suggesting that sustainability should be a 15 

separate block within the hearing? 

 

MR EVANS:   Yes, definitely, and combined with the life stage side of things, 

so in other words, to put those two into a package together. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MS BLAIR:   Karen Blair, for submitter 723.  My only query really is whether 

the non-residential provisions within the residential zone would be a 

block – sorry, would be a separate section. 25 

 

SJH:   Well, we will consider that.  You are suggesting it should be? 

 

MS BLAIR:   Yes, I think it would be useful to be discussed as one block. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR SOPPET:   Good morning, Raymond Soppet, submitter 382.  I just want to 

speak on the elderly person housing.  The new plan completely 

eliminates that section out of the current plan, it actually covers across 35 

a few of other areas you have identified, the neighbourhood zones, the 

land use, some of clauses, how they affect it, and also it is the step 

between where you live now, downsizing and retirement villages.  So 

effectively, what is happening with the new plan that completely 

eliminates that option. 40 

 

SJH:   I am sorry, perhaps I should have just asked as well, you wish to submit 

or you wish to call evidence as well? 

 

MR SOPPET:   I have put a written submission in which covered the points - - 45 

- 
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SJH:   Yes, but that means you are here today, you are entitled to appear at the 

hearing, you are entitled to submit to us, but you are also entitled to call 

evidence if you wish to do so. 

 5 

MR SOPPET:   I will speak with the Friend of the Submitter about that. 

 

SJH:   Good thank you.  If we just double check with the two - - -  

 

MS……….:   Yes, we wish - - - 10 

 

SJH:   Yes what? – do you wish to submit or you wish to call evidence or both? 

 

MS……….:   Wish to call evidence. 

 15 

SJH:   Right, and the evidence will be from? 

 

MS……….:   Evidence will be in terms of planning and a company 

representative in terms of the submission. 

 20 

SJH:   So you will be calling an expert witness? 

 

MS……….:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Do you know who that person is at the moment? 25 

 

MS……….:   It will either be David Markland (ph 3.46) or Karen Blair. 

 

SJH:   All right, well if you would advise the Secretariat of that – the name 

later.  Thank you very much. 30 

 

MS……….:   Thank you. 

 

MR……….:   I wish to submit on the sustainability and life stage and 

potentially the acoustic insulation side of things. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MS McLEOD:   Sir, Ainsley McLeod here for Transpower, submitter number 

832.  Transpower will be calling evidence from a planner, myself and 40 

an engineering company witness. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 
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MS ASTON:   Fiona Aston appearing on behalf of a number of submitters, I 

will just rattle through them and I will tell you who we are wanting to 

appear in each case.  

 

 So first of all, Castle Rock 983 - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Sorry, you are a planner, or? 

 

MS ASTON:   A planner.  Yes, sorry.  So Castle Rock 983, Castle Rock Estate 

582, Craig McCulloch and Victoria Foxton, further submission 1202.  10 

This relates to two blocks of land and we are seeking rezoning either to 

– the submission says, “Either residential suburban or new 

neighbourhood zone” and I guess for clarification, we have requested 

that as part of stage 1, and we will be presenting expert evidence.   

 15 

  [10.05 am] 

 

 I heard the discussion about new neighbourhood zones as being stage 2 

rezoning but I am presuming residential suburban zonings would be 

stage 1, I am just not quite sure. 20 

 

SJH:   No, it is not the new neighbourhood as stage 2, parts of it will be 

because it is an area, it is a geographic thing, stage 2, is that right, 

Mr Winchester? 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   Certainly. 

 

SJH:   So if your land, which is in stage 1, all of that will be heard at stage 1. 

 

MS ASTON:   I see, so land that is zoned rural at the moment, and we are 30 

seeking a zoning which is covered under stage 1 such as residential 

suburban - - - 

 

SJH:   Oh, well, that is something different. 

 35 

MS ASTON:   Which stage is it heard in? 

 

SJH:   Well, I think you had better turn up. 

 

MS ASTON:   Turn up, okay. 40 

 

SJH:   So we understand where you are coming from, because you are really 

seeking a spot zone, are you? 

 

MS ASTON:   No, just a further – residential and suburban is an existing 45 

proposed zone in stage 1 - - - 
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SJH:   Right. 

 

MS ASTON:   - - - so we are seeking that zoning.  The submission - - - 

 5 

SJH:   But you are zoned rural at the moment? 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, yes. 

 

SJH:   So your land is, actually in the planning map, is in stage 2? 10 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes.  It is an existing urban area in the current plan. 

 

(DISCUSSION) 

 15 

SJH:   Mr Taylor, this is really very similar to your submission, isn’t it, and we 

may have others of these. 

 

 There are two options, one we should hear this and make our decision 

on it and then hear from you later, which may be better, but I think 20 

probably the best course in the first instance, is to discuss it with the 

Council and we will make a determination.  You can file a further 

memorandum if you wish to do so when we contemplate and cogitate 

on everything we have heard today. 

 25 

 And in your issues note, Mr Winchester, as Judge Hassan has pointed 

out, could usefully cover that and we can make directions around it. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, but I think the Council’s starting point at the 

moment at least, is that these areas which are in phase 2, they are 30 

shown as phase 2 on the planning maps, probably should wait until 

phase 2 to be heard, presumably - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I can understand that, but perhaps they are going to also want to 

have their say on what – if they do get rezoned to whatever they seek - 35 

- - 

  

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   - - - they might want to have a say on what goes in the residential 40 

chapter. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I understand, sir. 

 

SJH:   That is the difficulty. 45 

 



 Page 16 

  

Ch14: Residential (PHC) 16.02.15 

MR WINCHESTER:   It is. 

 

SJH:   And they would have been prevented from that right if we simply deal 

with it later and there is already something in place, subject I guess, to 

our re-visitation rights. 5 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, presumably something you would be loath to 

exercise on a regular basis. 

 

SJH:   Well one would hope we can get some consistency of the city. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   And when you say expert witnesses, if you do become part of this 

hearing, they will be planners or others? 15 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, this one actually planner, traffic engineer, landscape 

architect, acoustic consultant and infrastructure engineer. 

 

SJH:   Right.  Thank you, we have noted that and if that could be discussed, 20 

and it goes in the issues paper and we will determine how we are going 

to approach it. 

 

MS ASTON:   Thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   It may be if you have specific issues with the residential proposal, you 

could make submissions on this on the assumption that you succeed 

later - - - 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes. 30 

 

SJH:   - - - because this is going to be determined before we hear rural, isn’t it? 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes.  Okay, I think my clients would prefer these matters to be 

dealt with as stage 1 because in some cases - - - 35 

 

SJH:   Well, everyone wants to be dealt with in stage 1, we understand 

commercial forces, but that is not our criteria. 

 

  [10.10 am] 40 

 

MS ASTON:   I understand.  So going on, the next submitter is Residential 

Construction, 684, further submission 1247 and this one relates to 

elderly person housing and the lack of provision for it in the 

Replacement Plan. 45 
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 So my question there was when the Council says one of the key issue is 

retirement villages, I assume that encompasses elderly persons’ 

housing as well.  I know there are a number of submissions on that. 

 

SJH:   Well I am not sure that is necessarily an assumption you can make. 5 

 

MS ASTON:   All right. 

 

SJH:   That, again, is something you need to look at the issues because I think 

they are different constructs, are they not? 10 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, absolutely, okay.  The next one in Holistic Education 

Trust, 826, and further submission 1398.  And, again, this relates to 

land where we have sought residential, suburban or new neighbourhood 

zoning in South Halswell.  Same issue as with Castle Rock in that 15 

regard and calling a Planner and Infrastructure Engineer-cum-Surveyor. 

 

SJH:   So that is within stage 2, or stage 1 on the - - - 

 

MS ASTON:   It is rural at the moment. 20 

 

SJH:   So it is exactly, right. 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, yes.  Next one; Sheila Bassett and Lindsay Talbert, 664.  

Again, same issue, seeking residential suburban or new neighbourhood 25 

zoning and that is a block of land at Heathcote, a Planner and a 

Surveyor and Infrastructure Engineer.    

 

SJH:   So they are what, I think Mr Winchester characterised as “me-too” 

submissions. 30 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes.  Tyler Limited, 322.  That is relating to the elderly persons 

housing issue.  Quaifes Road developments, 902 and further 

submission 1353, this is another block of land in South Halswell.  

These blocks in South Halswell are all refill prior to areas in the 35 

regional policy statement and part of the submission is if they are prior 

to areas then they really need to be dealt with as priority matters at 

stage 1.   

 

SJH:   All the ones that you are submitting on are Greenfields propriety order 40 

in the outer - - - 

 

MS ASTON:   No, no they are not.  The Castle Rock ones are not and neither is 

the Bassett and Talbert, they are both in the existing urban area. 

 45 

SJH:   So it is just the Halswell one that are in - - - 
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MS ASTON:   Well Holistic Education Trust, Quaifes Road Development and 

two more that I am coming onto are all greenfield priority areas.  I have 

to say, just to further clarify, the submission for Castle Rock relates to 

two blocks of land and one of those blocks of land is rural and it is not 5 

a greenfield priority area in the Regional Policy Statement and it is not 

an existing urban area in the current city plan and it was, as a small 

block, it was one of the areas that was subject to an appeal on chapter 1 

of the Regional Policy Statement which was extinguished when the 

Land Use Recovery Plan was made operative.  So they never had their 10 

ability to exercise that appeal right. 

 

 The next one is Halswell Trust, 826 and further submission 1451 and 

they, again, South Halswell.  Planner, Survey, and Infrastructure 

Engineer.  The next one is John Frazel (ph 4.10), 321 and that relates to 15 

provision for Churches in the residential suburban zone rules and that is 

just a Planner that will present evidence. 

 

 Peter Hubbard, 602, and that is a block in the Upper Styx/Harewood 

greenfield propriety area which is not zoned as part of stage 1 at this 20 

stage, and just a Planner for that one. 

 

 Next one is Minji Chen (ph 4.44), 692. That is a very confined issue 

relating to provision for replacement of one dwelling with two 

dwellings on sites where the dwelling is demolished as a result of 25 

earthquake damage.  It is just to do with the wording of the rules, so 

that is just a Planner. 

 

 Paul Murphy, 734, another block in south west Halswell, same issue as 

the other ones I have mentioned, a Planner, Surveyor, and 30 

Infrastructure Engineer.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS ASTON:   With these ones relating to south Halswell, depending on the 35 

Council’s evidence, possibly we may need a Traffic Engineer but we 

are just not sure at this stage. 

 

SJH:   Just one question with the large number of submitters.  Are any of them 

going to be legally represented at the hearing? 40 

 

  [10.15 am] 

 

MS ASTON:   Probably, yes. 

 45 

SJH:   I think that might be helpful to us. 
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MS ASTON:   All right.  That is it. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MR NIXON:   Hello, my name is Bob Nixon, I am a Planning Consultant.  I 

am representing eight parties here.  The first five of these are seeking 

very similar relief so I guess it would be logical to consider them 

together.  The common theme is the status of Churches and schools in 

residential areas.  Now, I realise that is a phase 2 process as well, but 10 

there are provisions in stage 1 such as the objectives and policies for 

non-residential activities at the very least which could affect those. 

 

 I can read them out with the numbers; they are Alpine Presbytery, 752, 

Methodist Church of New Zealand, 763, the Catholic Diocese of 15 

Christchurch, 656, Selwyn House School, further submitter 1250, and 

Rangi Ruru Girls School, 837.  At this stage I am expecting that the 

Diocese will call a planning witness, it will probably be myself and I 

think they will probably have legal representation as well. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR NIXON:   Turning to the other three, I think they are what His Honour 

referred to as “me-too” submissions. 

 25 

SJH:   I was using Mr Winchester’s words. 

 

MR NIXON:   Yes, but they are probably quite suitable in these circumstances.  

These three parties are basically people who are on the edge of 

commercial zones that are zoned residential and want to be commercial 30 

so I will identify those three. Working Style Properties, 689, Belgravia 

Investments, 678, and Dion Properties Limited, 757, and they will call 

a planning witness.  

 

SJH:   That also overlaps, does it not, with the intensification situation? 35 

 

MR NIXON:   Yes, it will, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 40 

MS MURRAY:   Jane Murray, representing Canterbury District Health Board. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, representing? 

 

MS MURRAY:   Canterbury District Health Board. 45 
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SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS MURRAY:   We would like to be heard on four aspects, one would be the 

Residential Activities Standards relating to Healthcare Facilities.  The 

Banks Peninsula zone and the Conservation Zone and would like to be 5 

heard on life stage design and urban design standards. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR GEMMILL:   Morning, sir, Tony Gemmill representing Riccarton Bush 10 

Trust.  As our submissions say, we are interested in the ongoing 

wellbeing of Riccarton Bush and the surrounding grounds of Riccarton 

House and Bush.  

 

 Just one point of clarification, if I may, sir, we think that we may be 15 

dealt with or accommodated within stage 2.  At this stage they would 

come along to see just what is resulting in this pre-hearing meeting 

today.  So we are, we think, in the residential zone which is going to be 

considered in stage 2.  Perhaps we could have clarification of that. 

 20 

SJH:   Well I think if you talk to the Friend of the Submitter and, perhaps, the 

Council at the end and we can have that clarified for you. 

 

MR GEMMILL:   Thank you, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR SMITH:   Good morning, sir.  Malcolm Smith who is here on behalf of 

L&S Glass and T&H Glass, submissions 578 and 579.  The submitters 

own a similar situation to that which was described by Ms Aston a wee 30 

while ago. 

 

  [10.20 am] 

 

 They presently have properties zoned rural.  They are seeking relief to 35 

have those properties included in the new neighbourhood areas and so I 

am very interested to be involved on behalf of the submitters in respect 

of any discussions with the Airport Authority, their land is within the 

noise sensitive area for the Airport.  And we are also obviously 

interested in clarification as to whether this submission should be part 40 

of phase 1 or phase 2. 

 

 We may be presenting expert evidence just depending on the way the 

discussions and hopefully mediation goes.  Equally both of the Glass 

families may wish to address the hearing directly, thank you. 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you, sir, Peter Harding for the Ilam and Upper 

Riccarton Residents Association, submitter No 738, further 

submission 1427.  Topics we will be raising are covering boarding 5 

houses, tertiary student accommodation, ancillary buildings and sleep 

outs and residential suburban zone general description.  We have been 

in discussion with Council, presenting to the Community Board and we 

are also having discussions with the university. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you, and at the moment you wish to submit at the hearing?  Yes, 

thank you.   

 

MS HARDY:   Rochelle Hardy, representing Church Property Trustees, 

submitter 793, I will be calling myself as a planner and Moka Ritchie 15 

who is a CPT trustee.  The main issues have already been raised by 

Mr Nixon and that is to do with non-residential activities in residential 

zones and particularly for a number of the existing church properties 

which are scheduled and I understand that is phase 2, so there is some 

crossover there.  And the main issue obviously is constraints on 20 

redevelopment of those sites that have been damaged through the 

earthquakes and the restrictions on existing use rights. 

 

 The other body I am representing is The Order of St John and their 

number is 785, I will be calling myself and a person from St John’s to 25 

be announced.  I will let the Secretariat know that.  Again lack of 

provisions for non-residential activities in residential zones and I 

understand the Fire Service has already raised similar issues in terms of 

provisions for emergency services, thank you. 

 30 

MR McMAHON:   Paul McMahon for the Spreydon-Heathcote Community 

Board.  I am sorry I do not have my submitter number.  The main 

issues are really around the intensification provisions and wanting to – 

while the Community Board supports intensification we also want to 

protect the amenity of our local communities, the character of the 35 

neighbourhoods.  I am confused as to why the character, the special 

amenity areas or what formerly were special amenity areas was not 

included in this stage and have been included in the second stage, but I 

mean I do not think I have anything else to add.  I would like to submit 

on behalf of my board. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS BEGG:   I am Janet Begg, an independent submitter, No 280. I am going to 

desperately need help from our Friend of the Submitters so please can I 45 

have a phone number for Richard Ball.  I am going to be talking about 
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transport, subdivision development, residential and commercial but 

mainly talking about our homes and the high water table and zoning, 

thank you. 

 

MR CURRY:   Hi, my name is Robin Curry, submitter No 964 on behalf of the 5 

Barrington Issues Groups.  Like my colleagues beside us we have a 

number of issues, mainly for us it is maps No 38 and 45 that appeared 

in the Council of the RSDT. (ph 4.37)  We have actually asked for that 

to come back to RS just because of the level of wastewater and other 

problems that we have had recently very similar to the Flockton 10 

flooding.  We have also made some submissions obviously on transport 

and other areas which we will be making a submission at the hearing 

but not calling evidence. 

 

  [10.25 am] 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR SITARZ;   My name is Ken Sitarz, submitter No 13, representing myself 

and my issue represents the permitted and discretionary activities of 20 

home occupations. 

 

MS SEATON:   Hi, my name is Kim Seaton, I am representing submitter 788 

which is K Bush Road Limited.  My client’s issues are primarily – 

well, there are two aspects really, they are primarily around the new 25 

neighbourhood zone provisions.  As you have already noted there is a 

considerable amount of overlap and commonality between the 

residential and the subdivision provisions.  I do have a question mark in 

my own head really I guess as to how we are going to separate out 

those provisions if they are dealt with in two separate hearings. 30 

 

 The submitter is also another “me too” submitter.  They have a 

reasonably large amount of land down in Halswell which is a 

greenfield priority area in which they are seeking rezoning as part of 

phase 1.   35 

 

 Appreciating what you said previously about talking with the Council 

and obviously your own considerations the number of experts that we 

call will be largely dependent on the outcome of those considerations.  

There will be a large number of experts if we deal with the rezoning 40 

issue now, a bit more restricted if we do not.  So as a minimum, 

certainly for the residential chapter, there will be planning evidence 

given by myself and a submission by the client as part of the 

subdivisions chapter.  Additionally we would also look to call a 

surveyor as a minimum, possibly a transport engineer and also there 45 
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will be several additional experts if we address the actual rezoning.  

Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MR McFARLANE:   Ross McFarlane representing the McFarlane Family, 

submitter 1034, further submitter 1211 regarding chapter 14, 

specifically planning map 44 and there seems to be a contradictory 

statement, and it was where the planning map says it is stage 2 but all 

the text support an increase in density in the stage 1 subjects.  So I am 10 

sure our matter can be clarified by Council and other submitters, so that 

is it. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 15 

MS MULCOCK:   Claire Mulcock for the Deans Avenue Precinct Society, 

submitter 549.  We have submitted on the intensification rules in the 

residential medium densities.  We will not be calling any expert 

witnesses. 

 20 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR COOK:   Good morning, I am John Cook, Planning Consultant.  I am 

representing Mr Eric Lin, submitter No 805 is yet another I suppose 

“me too” situation, the seeking of rezoning of land along Sawyers 25 

Arms Road which is currently rule 3 to a low density area.  This land 

has been subject to the Land Use Recovery Plan with the generic sort 

of indicators being for low density residential density.  So a funny 

situation, you know, the submission should be rightly phase 1 versus 

phase 2.  So, yes, it goes back to the Panel’s decision on this matter 30 

really.  So like this land has been subject to the LURP provision so, 

yes, it is rural but there is an indication that, yes, it should be low 

density residential. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MS BURNEY:   Trudi Burney on submission 535 on behalf of Enterprise 

Homes Limited and Kintyre Estates.  Our submission for the residential 

part is in regards to the new neighbourhood zone as opposed to the 

living G Yaldhurst zone.  We have also got a submission in for the 40 

subdivision chapter which we will probably deal with most of those 

through the subdivision chapter process.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 45 
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MR BROUGHTON:   My name is Robert Broughton, my submissions are 820 

and further submission 1414.  Basically my submissions or arguments 

in support of the Christchurch City Council’s planning map 31 for the 

area around Riccarton Bush.  I would like to support that that stand and 

not be altered so that is what my submissions are about and of course 5 

on residential chapter 14.  

 

  [10.30 am] 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you, good morning.  My name is Helen 10 

Broughton.  I am first of all representing the Riccarton-Wigram 

Community Board.  We have done a number of submissions on other 

chapters as well and in front of you, you will either have myself or 

Mike Mora who is chairperson of the board.  I will largely be handling 

the residential chapter. 15 

 

 I am also representing myself and that submission number is 592.  I 

have four other submitters who have asked me to represent them today.  

I am sorry I have not got their numbers.  (1) is Rosalie Souter, (2) is 

Phil and Prunella Harris, (3) is Julia Thomas and (4) Alison and Koen 20 

Kuiper.  I have Audrey Smith in the room here on my right and she has 

asked me to speak for her.   

 

 So the issues we are concerned about are the objectives, the policy, the 

rules and some people have mentioned non-residential.  We have also 25 

cross-submitted on that issue.  We are probably keen to get a definition 

of non-residential which is tighter than it currently seems to be.  In my 

own submission I am concerned particularly on map 31 and the other 

residents, other than Audrey Smith, are concerned about that issue as 

well.   30 

 

 Audrey Smith has the issue of houses being turned into bedrooms and 

that I think touches on the issue of the residential unit and Ilam-Upper 

Riccarton Residents Association will be touching on that in their full 

submission.  The Riccarton-Wigram Board I think we would look to 35 

find a planner and I myself might bring a planner as well.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR FLETCHER:   Good morning, my name is Stewart Fletcher, I am a 40 

Planning Consultant and I will be providing evidence for submitter 

838, 839 and 841 and 843.  They are relatively simple matters 

regarding businesses that are seeking a commercial zoning instead of 

the residential zoning currently proposed.  And I will also be providing 

evidence for submitter 893, that is just regarding some minor tweaks to 45 
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the residential section to provide better for visitor accommodation such 

as B and Bs.   

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 5 

MR FLETCHER:   I suspect I am better to talk to the Friend of Submitters but 

one of the things that could affect the evidence for the first group is the 

temporary earthquake provisions.  Some of my clients already have 

provision to operate based under the current provisions and I 

understand there were - - - 10 

 

SJH:   Does it not fall under temporary activities? 

 

MR FLETCHER:   Sorry? 

 15 

SJH:   Is that under temporary activities? 

 

MR FLETCHER:   One has a resource consent to operate but it has been 

aligned with the earthquake provisions to 2016, and others have 

approval to operate to 2016 also. 20 

 

SJH:   Well, we have had a hearing on temporary activities and there will be a 

decision handed down on that next week. 

 

MR FLETCHER:   Right, okay.  Well, dependent on that decision. 25 

 

SJH:   So does it fall into – what I am trying to understand is, is it covered by 

that or does it fall into residential? 

 

MR FLETCHER:   Right now it falls into residential but, given that my clients 30 

do have provision to operate until 2016, if there was an extension to 

that time period then that may affect their decision as to whether they 

decide to pursue this process, also. 
 

  [10.35 am] 35 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MS COMFORT:   Julie Comfort, I am a planner and I am here representing a 

number of submitters today. 40 

 

 Firstly 287, Cats Protection League, they are interested in non-

residential and they will be most likely represented by a representative 

from the League and will just be making a submission but we will 

confirm that through the Secretariat. 45 
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 Davie Lovell-Smith, themselves, made submissions on the residential 

chapter and primarily around the new neighbourhood provisions.  So 

those provisions are going to be heard as one, for the subdivision, 

residential that is probably the ones, and we will probably be calling a 

planner, the likes of myself.   5 

 

 Freyberg Developments Limited is 907, they will probably have legal 

representation and a planner.  Again, they are a phase 2 zone plan, 

wanting new neighbourhood rezoning but have got interest in the new 

neighbourhood rules. 10 

 

 Luneys Buchanan’s Road Limited, 900.  Planner and probably legal 

representation and they are currently zoned in to new neighbourhood 

and want to keep that and have comments on those rules.  The same 

applies for Milns Road Farm Limited, and Blakesfield Limited, 931, 15 

and that will be a planner and legal representation. 

 

 St Andrew’s College, 891, they actually sought the removal from 

residential rezoning of some adjoining land to their school and on 

confirmation from the Council, that the land is going to be part of their 20 

school zone, they may not wish to appear on that. 

 

 Summerset Group Holdings Limited, 765, will have legal 

representation, a planner and a company representative.  And if we are 

also going to be talking about the new neighbour rules in bringing in 25 

the subdivision stuff, the New Zealand Institute of Surveyor, number 

575, will probably also want to be part of that and probably a planner 

and maybe a surveyor. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 30 

 

MS COMFORT:   Sorry. 

 

MR HARDIE:   There is just one more, and I have got some more, too. 

 35 

MS COMFORT:   Sorry – Fulton Hogan Land Developments Limited, number 

473.  Legal representation, company work-in planner, look, they are in 

a situation where their land is currently zoned, living in the new plan - 

some parts of it are residential suburban, are significantly 

(INDISTINCT 3.11) by Fulton Hogan and also one by the Council 40 

have sought to seek those bits that have been given subdivision consent 

and built to be suburban and/or new neighbourhood, whichever way it 

is likely to go. 

 

 And there is a small area of extension which I believe is the area that 45 

Mr Taylor is concerned about.  So it is a matter that they are quite 
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concerned about, they think that it could be dealt with as part of this 

stage, but Mr Rogers may well address you that in this subdivision 

section. 

 

SJH:   Mr Hardie? 5 

 

MR HARDIE:   Sir, my apologies to the Panel, I had not realised that I should 

go through all of the matters that I am appearing for when you first 

spoke and I selfishly only spoke about my own personal situation.  Can 

I say that the others that I did indicate when I stood up that I was 10 

appearing for?   

 

 The Riccarton Kilmarnock Residents Association, submission 462.  

That concerns the area of that community as surrounding Riccarton on 

the Riccarton Bush side.  The Council has zoned that land, I am going 15 

to call it living one, because it is essentially not a dense intensification, 

yet of course, the Crown has got a general submission in which it is 

saying that it is seeking more intensification around the important 

suburban areas.   

 20 

 The Council has supported the residents over several plans to keep a 

very broad zoning of effectively living one and so the Riccarton 

Kilmarnock Residents Group is in to support the Council, hope the 

Council won’t change its’ mind and if necessary, because the Crown 

might seek a change, there is no one specifically sought a change, but 25 

in case, as part of the big picture there is a change, they would want to 

call evidence and that would be from one person from the organisation 

plus a planner but you probably need to know there is a whole lot of 

individual members who are submitted in their own right who will 

want to be heard, so if that matter does come up, you are largely likely 30 

to get a large number of people wanting to be in front of you but I will 

restrict the evidence to be called by the Residents Association itself.  

 

SJH:   Well, it may be resolved if you talk to the Crown.  

 35 

  [10.40 am] 

 

MR HARDIE:  Of course, we can hopefully - - - 

 

SJH:   Whether that will fit with the part of the intensification, it is not part of 40 

their intensification area, then that would resolve - - - 

 

MR HARDIE:   In which case, no evidence will need to be called at all.  And I 

might say the group I represent is very happy to be involved in any 

mediation process to talk through that as well. 45 
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SJH:   Well there are a number of similar submissions and it is a concern of the 

Broughton’s and the Riccarton Bush, all sorts of people have submitted 

on a similar basis. 

 

MR HARDIE:   Yes.  Next, can I mention a slightly different way but again 5 

very minor, Terrace Developments Limited and associated entities, 

sorry, I have moved forward and have not got that submission number, 

they are involved in the KAC which is going to be new and it is off 

Halswell Road and they have simply got, as part of a very broad 

submission, in relation to residential, they are supporting the notion that 10 

around KACs there should be some intensification so all they would be 

doing is submitting on that if the matter arose in the future. 

 

 The next one is RJ and LT Crozier, submission 324.  I am embarrassed 

because I appeared today because I was to have had a letter from my 15 

instructing solicitors by this morning, it has not arrived so I always say 

I will not appear and stand up unless the former letter of instruction has 

arrived.  It has not, but I feel obliged to perhaps - - - 

 

SJH:   Just give us an indication any way and we will record it. 20 

 

MR HARDIE:   I will hopefully, this, from what I can make out in the 

meetings I had late last week is to be an area of land which is in the 

Cranford Basin, that land has been the subject of much debate about 

whether it can be zoned residential or not.  It was opposed and has 25 

always been opposed because some features of the land do not lend 

itself to residential land, they say, because there is underlying peat. 

 

 Now, a large part of that land has been taken up by the Council to make 

way for new roading in a new highway coming into the city for the 30 

northern arterial and the land owned by the Croziers is adjacent and 

will be left as a very small rural block and they have sought a 

submission, you may call it a “me too” which seeks that it become 

residential and I would imagine if that is to be pursued by me, I 

appreciate I am going to need a significant number of witnesses to 35 

attest to the various things that happen when one wants land to be 

changed from rural to residential. 

 

 Finally I should note again, the last of the people I appear for it is a 

company, Highsted Properties Limited, again to put you in the picture, 40 

Highsted Properties Limited was a group of landowners who, after the 

earthquake, have managed to persuade the Council and indeed the 

Crown that a large area of land at Highsted should be rezoned, so this 

was a clear reference to the earthquake and the need for land, it is all in 

place, there is no problem at all, the sections are sold and everything is 45 

going tickety-boo, but other landowners nearby have come along, some 
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have been mentioned today, Mr Hubbard at 602 and the like and they 

are seeking development and/or potentially changes to the rules.   

 

 Again, we are not quite sure yet, we have not had discussions that we 

ought to have had about what is being sought so it is merely a watching 5 

brief, merely to make sure that nothing that has already happened and 

been given a tick of approval is put at risk and indeed, Highsted 

Properties Limited is not out to prevent other people in turn from 

having their land in that area not yet zoned, actually zoned for 

residential purposes. 10 

 

  [10.45 am] 

 

 And I think, my apologies again, but I think that the only other matter 

is the Riccarton Bush Trust, in my own Trust has got a cross-15 

submission on that, I see that Riccarton Bush Trust is here today.  It is 

about what the trust wants by way of protection, but there is nothing 

specific that is being sought and I will go off and have some 

discussions with the Trust myself, see if I can work through it.  It is not 

to come up just yet – it has been mentioned and I will help out and see 20 

if we can make some progress and come to some point where it is 

either all agreed or it is all not agreed.   

 

SIR HANSEN:   Thank you, Mr Hardie.  I think the Health Board 

representative looked like they wanted to say something more?  If you 25 

take the microphone back. 

 

MS MURRAY:   Thank you, sir.  I just wanted to represent myself, Jane 

Murray, further submitter 1415 and I would be appearing with some of 

my neighbours in response to Stuart Fletcher’s appearance. 30 

 

SIR HANSEN:   So you are here representing the Health Board and yourself? 

 

MS MURRAY:   Yes.  That is why I did it separately. 

 35 

SIR HANSEN:   So you are an in-house lawyer for the Hospital Board or 

what?   

 

MS MURRAY:   No. 

 40 

SIR HANSEN:   What is your role at the Hospital Board? 

 

MS MURRAY:   I am a policy advisor, not a planner.   

 

SIR HANSEN:   Okay.  Thank you. 45 
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MS ………:  Just one oversight, my apologies, one of my client’s, Residential 

Construction, I stated that their concern was elderly persons’ housing – 

actually their submission does have a couple of other elements to it as 

well.  So just for completeness I feel I should explain that to you as 

well.   5 

 

 So they own a site at 104 to 106 Papanui Road which is residential 

medium-density in the Replacement Plan, and they have sought either 

some amendments to the zoning to allow for travellers’ accommodation 

in that zone, or that it be rezoned commercial fringe.  And also some 10 

amendments to the policies and rules in the residential section to make 

provision for travellers’ accommodation.   

 

 As I understand it there is a current living 5 zone in the current city 

plan which provides for travellers’ accommodation and residential 15 

activities as of right, and that the new equivalent of that zone is going 

to be considered as stage 2.  But that zone is only very specific and it 

relates to land at lower Riccarton Road and lower Papanui Road, and so 

we don’t really know what is going to happen to the travellers’ 

accommodation in stage 2, whether it is going to cover land such as my 20 

client’s – which it doesn’t cover at the moment.  So that is why we 

have had to submit on the residential section in relation to that matter. 

 

 And there are also a couple of matters submitting on in relation to site 

coverage.  And I am in a bit of a situation similar to my friend 25 

Mr Hardie, in that I haven’t got file instructions from the client yet on 

this matter, but I feel it is important that I draw it to your attention. 

 

 Thank you. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you.  Well a lot of what we have heard reiterates concerns that 

have been raised previously which is the way this process unfolds, 

chapter-by-chapter and there are a number of overlaps that we have 

heard about with transport, with subdivision, whether it is in stage 1 

and whether it is in stage 2. 35 

 

 To some extent we are locked into the process we have to follow and 

the way these hearings unfold, chapter-by-chapter.  As we have said 

previously, we do have a power to come back and revisit where 

necessary.   40 

 

 It seems to me though, Mr Winchester, that part of what needs to be 

determined today with a number of the submitters is whether they fall 

within stage 1 and stage 2.  As again I say, because of the nature of 

this, that while the land falls into stage 2, some parts of concerns with 45 

objectives, policies and rules in this chapter may have to be addressed 
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at this stage to avoid a substantial re-visitation later which could indeed 

involve re-notification and such like under the order in Council.  So the 

more of that we can resolve at this stage, I think is beneficial.  So that is 

a matter that perhaps you can discuss with the assistance of the Friend 

of the Submitter and with the submitters before you leave today, and 5 

include within the statement of issues. 

 

  [10.50 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, absolutely, sir, and I think and I didn’t quite 10 

appreciate the potential scale of the “me too” issue but it seems that 

based on what you have heard today from submitters, it is quite 

substantial. 

 

SJH:   Well, it would seem to be about half the submissions here fall into you 15 

“me too” category. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, and I don’t mean to be derogatory in using that, it 

is simply a convenient way of describing it. 

 20 

SJH:   No, it wasn’t taken that way, but it does aptly describe it. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, and I mean there are some, I suppose some major 

issues, particularly around – you start straying into issues of 

infrastructure, engineering matters, and if those issues are determined 25 

at this stage, there is going to be quite a substantial body of site specific 

evidence given about these matters, and three weeks starts looking like 

the blink of an eye really, in my submission. 

 

 I think, I will take instructions but the Council’s preference, I think, is 30 

for the provisions, in terms of the zoning, rules, et cetera, to be 

considered as part of stage 1, and the issue of the “when” and the 

“where”, in terms of the zoning maps, to be dealt with as part of phase 

2. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, I think that is sensible but there may be scope and this is what I 

would like to discuss and we will hear from other Panel members in a 

moment, is the extent to which we can hear submissions on an 

assumption around certain rules and suchlike so that doesn’t have to be 

revisited or doesn’t turn into a substantial revisitation at a later date. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, yes. 

 

SJH:   It does highlight the issues created by part chapters. 

 45 
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MR WINCHESTER:   It does and the potential for the rezoning to potentially, 

essentially, potentially, taken to a spot zoning exercise in terms of 

modifications - - -  

 

SJH:   Well, that is the point I made earlier, yes. 5 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.   Possibly, I should have mentioned earlier, and it 

may be an important point in terms of the way some submitters intend 

to pursue matters, and that relates to the sustainability provisions and 

the life stage provisions.  Some submitters have expressed an interest in 10 

those matters.  

 

 I should record that the Council’s position is that it will not be calling 

evidence, expert evidence, in support of those provisions.  As to 

whether they are still matters which are going to be promoted by the 15 

Council, that is a decision for elected members which has not yet been 

made, but either way, evidence will not be called in support of those 

provisions by Council officers or consultants. 

 

SJH:   Well, it is not planning to? 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No. 

 

SJH:   But if the elected members decide to pursue it, we are going to have to 

try and grant that on through all of this as well.  It is in a context where 25 

we are meant to be enabling recovery, and one would have thought 

these sorts of decisions might have been made by now. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, they are in there at the moment, 

recommendations will be taken to the Council very soon about this 30 

issue. 

 

SJH:   But if you are not calling expert evidence on it, what does that really tell 

us about your position, well sorry, not yours, the Council’s position? 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is a difficult question to answer, sir, - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, I am sorry, but you are the only one who can answer it for us, 

Mr Winchester, and it is important.  

 40 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, I suppose, the way I can put it is that there is 

perhaps a desire from elected members to pursue these provisions, and 

particularly based on the outcomes of consultation that the Council 

undertook through earlier stages of this process, and the level of 

importance that elected members may believe that these provisions 45 

have for the recovery, as to whether they - - - 
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SJH:   There are a large number of submissions on these? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, and there are, of course, the new considerations 

which need to be overlayed, or the more recent considerations of the 5 

statement of expectations, and that of course will be a matter which is 

brought to councillors attention as part of the overall mix. 

 

 But if they still remain live from the Council’s perspective, then it is 

probably up to myself and Ms Scott as Counsel to advance the position. 10 

 

SJH:   Do you have any indication when such a decision is likely to be made? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   It is likely to be this week or next week, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   So if it was made this week, you could still be calling evidence on this in 

this chapter? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, no, the position is that no evidence in support 

of the provisions will be called by the Council. 20 

 

SJH:   Sorry? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No evidence in support will be called by the Council. 

 25 

  [10.55 am] 

 

SJH:   Regardless of the decision the Council makes this week? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Correct, that is right, because in terms of the role of 30 

officers and consultants as independent experts to assist the Panel, they 

are not in a position to provide evidence in support of them. 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Before I go to other Panels, the other two things that arise it 

seems to me, is that again we will need a list of definitions that fall 35 

within this chapter, one or two were raised but there is probably more. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   And the other, is there are a number of issues around churches, schools, 40 

St John, Fire, et cetera, of non-residential use within these areas that 

one would hope could be resolved before we get to a hearing. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, that does seem to be an area where – particularly 

around the provisions or the policy that relates to those matters, that 45 
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should be capable discussion, at least narrowing of those sorts of 

considerations.   

 

 Obviously scheduling of non-residential activities, I think, is fairly and 

squarely a phase 2 matter. 5 

 

 Did you want to hear from me as to the Council’s intended list of 

experts? 

 

SJH:   Yes, it would be useful if you gave it to us at this stage. 10 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir.  The list is Mr Scott Blair, who is a planner and has 

been responsible for the residential chapters, the residential proposal.  

 

 Mr John Scanlon (Ph. 1.44) who is also a planner whose specific area 15 

will be intensification. 

 

 Richard O’Brien who is an engineer and been dealing with issues of 

servicing intensification areas.  There will be a traffic planning witness 

as yet unidentified, but to deal with traffic effects of intensification and 20 

local parking issues. 

 

 A market economist, at this stage it is not yet confirmed, but it is 

intended it will be Dr Douglas Fairgray, to deal with economic issues 

to do with the residential market and intensification. 25 

 

 An architect to deal with built form standards, and potentially also a 

statistician to deal with urban growth projections again, relating back to 

intensification. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Winchester, which of your witnesses will be giving 

evidence on section 32? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I suspect that will be Mr Blair and may potentially 

extend into Dr Fairgray, but primarily, Mr Blair. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And finally just depending upon what remains live, 

there is the potential for an urban designer, particularly around the issue 40 

of comprehensive greenfield development to deal with any issues 

around rules and policies on that matter. 

 

 So that is the Council’s current list, sir. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Carranceja. 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, yes I can confirm the Crown will be calling – at this 

stage I will just indicate up to 18 witnesses, but it could reduce, sir, 

during the course of mediation et cetera, but at the present time, sir, we 

will be calling a witness from the Ministry of Business, Innovation and 5 

Employment and that person will be covering a topic of the housing 

accord, sir, and the relevance towards this chapter. 

 

 Housing New Zealand intends to call up to two witnesses.  One in 

relation to operational matters including covering matters to do with 10 

social housing, and the other, a planner. 

 

 For the Canterbury Earthquake Recovery, sir, 10 witnesses, I will just 

systematically go through those, sir. 

 15 

 The first one will be regarding the urban design approach, Mr Don 

Miskell, but that is to be confirmed, sir. 

 

 A witness to deal with the integration with the central city, to be 

confirmed, sir. 20 

 

 A witness to cover social and cultural recovery, sir.  Witness to be 

confirmed. 

 

 A witness covering housing, supply and demand who I think it will be 25 

Ian Mitchell, sir. 

 

 Intensification capacity is another witness. 

 

 And just to indicate, sir, we are intending all these to be experts. 30 

 

  [11.00 am] 

 

 A witness to cover the design approach to providing for intensification.   

 35 

 A witness covering infrastructure, most likely, sir, to be Rob Rouse, 

who this Panel has heard before. 

 

 A planning witness to cover the LURP interventions to facilitate the 

housing supply. 40 

 

 A general planning witness, sir, that is to be Sandra McIntyre, and a 

planning witness to specifically cover the social and cultural recovery 

aspects, sir, that is Vicky Barker.   

 45 
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 For the Fire Service, sir, likely to be two witnesses.  Once again will be 

Mr Alan Merry on operational matters and also Ainsley McLeod on 

planning. 

 

 One witness for the Department of Corrections, sir, likely to be on a 5 

combination of policy and planning.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is that Ainsley McLeod, or Anthony McLeod? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sorry, Ainsley, A-I-N-S-L-E-Y, sir. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Sorry, I missed your last one. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The last one, Department of Corrections, that will be a 

witness likely to cover planning and policy, and possibly operational as 15 

well.  The same with Ministry of Education; a separate witness, again 

planning or policy or operational, or a combination of all three. 

 

 Lastly, the Ministry of Health; the same type of witness. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And the planning witness you mentioned is “general”? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Will that witness have a role in dealing with all matters of 25 

evaluation arising from the Crown’s case? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, responding to the Crown’s case.  So the intention, 

sir, is the Crown’s case, for CERA at least, will be mostly dealt with by 

Sandra McIntyre, with the exception of the social and cultural recovery 30 

aspect; that will be dealt with by Vicky Barker. 

 

 And that is all, sir.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Any Counsel who plan on calling experts who haven’t already indicated.  

A number of you have, if you could just let us know now.  Starting 40 

with you Ms Appleyard? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, for the airport there will be an economist, an 

acoustic witness, an airport planner and a general planner.  The only 

other area, and I don’t think this is a matter which is raised on the 45 

submissions, but whether there is going to be any dispute about the 
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actual location of the contours.  So these witnesses actually respond to 

what the response should be to land use within the contours. 

 

 But if we are going to have a challenge on where the line is, that does 

bring in a suite of technical experts on how the contours were actually 5 

created, and that involves things like fleet mix, flight paths, et cetera.  

So I am not anticipating on the face of the submissions at the moment 

that that is necessary, but I just need to - - - 

 

SJH:   So you are reserving your position in relation to that? 10 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes.  

 

SJH:   I suppose the one comment we would make, that some of this may 

overlap, in all three so far, in the evidence we heard on strategic 15 

directions around some stuff. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   So if we can, as far as possible, just adopt that earlier evidence. 20 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes.  And just on this issue as well, a lot of the “me too” 

submissions are rural land that is seeking rezoning to residential within 

the contour.  So the airports case may be larger or smaller, depending 

on where we get to on that issue.   25 

 

 For the Lyttelton Port Company there will be an economist, an acoustic 

expert and a planner. 

 

 For the Nurse Maude Association and Gelita New Zealand Limited 30 

there will be a planner.  

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS MARKS:   Sir, I have two separate submissions, so they are likely to call 35 

evidence separate on those submissions.  So for the first one, they will 

call a planner and someone from a housebuilding company. 

 

 For the second one; a planner, a surveyor, a services expert, traffic 

modeller, and expert in roading design, landscape and urban design.   40 

 

 Morris R Carter Limited will call a planner, a surveyor and services 

expert. 

 

 Kauri Lodge; a planner. 45 
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 CDL Land; a planner. 

 

 the Racecourse Reserve Trustees will call; a planner, a traffic expert, 

urban design expert, a services expert and a geo tech expert.   

 5 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Sir, the Regional Council would like to confirm its 

position that it did submit in support of the notified version in the plan 

and was involved in the collaborative advisory group process in 10 

relation to the development of the plan, but for the purposes of this 

chapter it will not be calling expert evidence, and will be seeking to 

rely on legal submission. 
 

  [11.05 am] 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Rogers? 

 

MS ROGERS:   Sir, Southern Response is mainly concerned with the life stage 

provisions, so only if they still remain an issue will they submit further.  20 

If they do, they wish to call an architect and a Southern Response 

representative. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cleary? 

 25 

MR CLEARY:   Thank you sir.  Dealing firstly with Dannemora Holdings 

Limited, the Panel will be familiar with the exemplar land, which is the 

proposal by my client in Halswell, Hendersons Road.  The client has a 

sort of a wider area of land adjacent to the exemplary area, and in 

respect of the residential zoning of that land our new neighbourhood is 30 

only likely to call a planner and an infrastructure expert, and possibly a 

representative of the company. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Do you know whether the planner is Mr Brown. 

 35 

MR CLEARY:   The planner will be Mr Brown, and the infrastructure expert is 

likely to be Mr Andrew Hall. And possibly urban design, but that is to 

be confirmed. 

 

 And in respect of the Retirement Villages Association and also Archer 40 

Baptist Home, their submission it is intended to call a planner, and we 

are hoping to confirm that it will be Ms Megan Justice. And also a 

representative from the association, Mr Collins.  

 

 In terms of the air-noise contour issue and in terms of Independent 45 

Fisheries Limited; further submission in opposition to the Airport’s 
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submission, it is not intended as far as I understand to call any expert 

witnesses, it will just be a matter of legal submission by Ms Steven. 

 

 In terms of actually the location of the contour my understanding is the 

location of the contour is not actually part of the stage 1 proposal.  And 5 

so therefore if the location is to be challenged it would have to be in my 

submission as part of phase 2.  Again, my understanding from 

discussions with Ms Steven is that Independent Fisheries Limited 

wishes to participate in the issue of the location of the contours.  

 10 

 There is I think one other submitter, would be Simmons Kennedy and 

Spencer Taylor, which is effectively the relief they are seeking is the 

rezoning of a piece of land in Wairakei Road from residential to 

commercial fringe, and at this stage it is likely that they would call a 

planning witness and no more.  15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Hardie, we have heard from you.  Mr Millar? 

 

MR MILLAR:   Sir, for the University of Canterbury, CPIT and Orion New 

Zealand; each will have their planning witness and a representative 20 

from each organisation. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Taylor?  Subject to you being in this part? 

 

MR TAYLOR:   Subject to us being part of phase 1.  Just want to confirm 25 

firstly that the reference that Ms Comfort made in terms of the Fulton 

Hogan submission is the land that we are interested in as well. 

 

 But the four clients that I represent, and one other person, are also 

submitters, which we would classify as V2 submitters, on land which 30 

includes that block plus some adjoining land as well, which is currently 

zoned rural.  That has been summarised as being a phase 2 submission 

and our expectation had been that that would be considered as part of 

phase 2.  Hence our concern about one part of land considered in phase 

1, the other in phase 2.  35 

 

 So our expectation had been that we would not be presenting as part of 

phase 1.  If necessary we would be legal representative, myself as a 

planner, and an infrastructure engineer, and a representative of the 

residents who own land.  40 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Walsh? 

 

MS WALSH:   Thank you.  I do not have proper instructions yet but I have 

somewhat of instructions by way of a note, sir.  For Edward Atkin, 45 

submitter 233, they are in the “me too” category as well. 
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 I understand that their land is part of phase 2, it is a gray-out area.  So 

they were not anticipating having to be part of the phase 1 hearings, but 

their submission is that they want to be re-zoned as part of the 

greenfield priority area to a residential zoning, zoning of which will be 5 

heard as part of phase 1.  

 

  [11.10 am] 

 

 So I think just to add to your consideration of this issue, which is 10 

becoming increasingly complex, sir, I think that if there is a decision 

made that those “me too” categories are to form part of phase 1, then 

there needs to be sufficient time for those parties to instruct witnesses, 

given that they had thought that they were going to be a part of phase 

two matters, sir.  So just to be cognisant of that. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MRS WALSH:   For Ngai Tahu Property Limited, they will be calling a 

planner, possibly an economist and a company representative.  For 20 

Te Runanga o Ngai Tahu and Ngā Runanga, they will be calling a 

planner. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 25 

MRS WALSH:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Now, are there any other submitters who would be calling expert 

witnesses who haven’t already identified that to us? Thank you. 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   One matter that I noted that may be useful to cover in the list 

of submissions or issues, there were a group of people who are 

currently zoned residential but wish to become zoned commercial, or 

maybe it was industrial, but I heard commercial mentioned, and that’s 

not a stage 1/stage 2 matter, it is just a which part of stage one is it 35 

heard in? 

 

 So that might be a matter that could be discussed and some 

recommendations made on that as well. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Sax? 

 

MR SAX:   Yes, thank you.  A question for Mr Winchester.  Sir, I just wonder 

whether your client has considered or would be prepared to consider a 

change in the process, so a lot of the submission which are about 45 

residential, whether it could be confined to a planning decision at 
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higher level that, yes, this would be a good idea, this would be 

required, with a caveat that the rezoned land is then incumbent upon 

the owners to determine, to the satisfaction of Council, that engineering 

matters, infrastructure matters, earthwork matters, traffic matters, can 

be reasonably satisfied. 5 

 

 In terms of being aspirational that could significantly increase the pace 

of process, I suggest, perhaps be aspirational in even empowering the 

very submitters to take care of detailed engineering because that is 

often complex, I just wonder whether that is something you have 10 

thought about or would be prepared to think about? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, certainly, sir, I will take that back and take 

instructions on it.  A number of these issues have, I understand, been 

determined at a relatively big picture level through the Land Use 15 

Recovery Plan in chapter 6 of the regional policy statement and we are 

now getting down to final levels of detail. 

 

 But I will take instructions about that because it does seem that there is 

an opportunity to cut through taking up the Hearing Panel’s time on 20 

some of these matters.   

 

MR SAX:   Thank you, sir.  My second question, Ms Appleyard, I wonder 

whether your submitter, the airport, is or would be prepared to 

proactively look at acoustic levels that may be complied with by design 25 

criteria being imposed in the housing where there are a number of 

people looking for rezoning.  I think that is a fairly easy matter to 

achieve and I think it would be very helpful if they would consider that. 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes, and they have actually put forward – I am just trying 30 

to remember if it’s part of phase one or – I think it is part of phase 1, 

some suggestions around that in their submission, but certainly we will 

take that matter and we can do that through a mediation. 

 

MR SAX:   Thank you. 35 

 

SJH:   All right, well, thank you.  We will take a break now until 11.30  m.  We 

will come back to the hearing procedures and if we could bring up the 

standard procedures on the screen please for when we come back, and 

it will be up here on the wall, so perhaps lay submitters who are not 40 

familiar with that already can have a look at it and see what their 

position is.  It is really mainly around limitations of time for evidence, 

submission and cross-examination because of the time constraints 

imposed on all of us, particularly this Panel.   

 45 
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 So thank you for your cooperation so far, you can use the time with the 

Friend of the Submitter and maybe even, Mr Winchester, starting to 

plan a little process when we finish of the matters we have raised to 

date, we would be grateful.  So we will take a break for 15 minutes. 

 5 

ADJOURNED [11.15 am] 

 

RESUMED [11.35 am] 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  We will come out of the hearing procedures which are on 10 

the screen, if you would just scroll through as necessary, Counsel here 

will all be familiar with those and what we have done to date.  Does 

anyone take issue with the timeframes we have adopted today?  

Mr Winchester? 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Does the Crown? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir. 20 

 

SJH:   Do any other Counsel here with issue, because there is always leave to 

apply for longer time of cross-examination, for example of experts.  

We need to go to the timeframes. 

 25 

 Well look, I will cut across just for the benefit of the lay submitters, 

what we have adopted to date is that if you call evidence you will be 

given 20 minutes to speak to that evidence, so your evidence will come 

to when you have to file it, but your evidence will be filed in advance 

and read by the Panel.  When you come to give evidence in the hearing 30 

you will be given 20 minutes, which is really the opportunity to present 

a highlights package of your evidence.   

 

 Cross-examination of expert witnesses, I think, is 20 minutes? 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   15, I think, sir. 

 

SJH:   15 minutes, and cross-examination otherwise the same.  So any lay 

submitters, I will come to your submission in a moment, anybody have 

any objections to those timeframes that we have adopted in all the 40 

hearings to date?  All right, thank you. 

 

 When it comes to submissions you would be given the same time to 

speak to your submissions.  What we are trying to avoid is simply 

where you file a written submission and you simply read it.  What we 45 

are looking for is a highlights package, an emphasis on the things that 
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are really important, the things you want to draw our attention to in 

your submission.  So does anyone have any issue with that? All right, 

thank you. 

 

 The other matter we will raise, and again it is something you might like 5 

– the lay submitters who are going to call expert evidence might like to 

discuss with the Friend of the Submitters, but we would urge all 

counsel and anyone else who are calling expert witnesses to look if it’s 

possible to share witnesses so that we are not hearing the same thing 

over and over again.  That has been productive to date and a number of 10 

people have managed to agree on that.   

 

 We have got a list of the expert witnesses for each party.  As to the 

consolidation, that is really bringing together what we said before, the 

hearing into a number of subsets, and subject to what people may say, 15 

our preferred view is that we should hear all of the evidence of the 

Council and all of the evidence from the Crown, and after that we will 

go into the intensification, et cetera, et cetera, the various matters we 

identified previously and deal with them as we go through. 

 20 

 Now, do any Counsel have an issue with that?  Any lay submitters have 

an issue with that? Thank you. 

 

 Those of you who are not sure about the state of your submission and 

how specific the relief is, because a lot of it is just we oppose, we 25 

agree, and what we ae trying to seek as far as possible is a very specific 

statement of what relief, in other words, what changes you are seeking 

to the published and notified proposal. 

 

  [11.40 am] 30 

 

 So if you are unsure about that, then that again is another matter that 

you should discuss with the lay submitter and submit a further 

document just setting out specifically the relief you seek. 

 35 

 It may be, in some cases, like sustainability for issue, it is a general 

type of submission in any event, but where you are asking for a very 

specific thing, please tell us.  It helps everybody.   

 

 I indicated earlier, the difference between expert conferencing and 40 

mediation; we will put together a programme.  It seems to us, however, 

that mediation in particular, Mr Winchester, is not fruitful until after 

the Council has filed its evidence.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is the experience from the Council’s perspective as 45 

well, sir.  I can address you on conferencing, if that would assist? 
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SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I think the Council’s preference is probably for – 

because of the scale and the timeframes for the pre-hearing directions 5 

to be limited to mediations.  We - - - 

 

SJH:   Look, I am sorry, I should just add one thing that may assist, that we 

have had a brief discussion and we haven’t yet formed a final view 

about those stage 2 matters and the risk we identified that there may be 10 

policy and rule matters come up that would lead to re-notification. 

 

 We think that is highly unlikely but possible, but I think the 

consequences of trying to include it in a stage one matter far outweigh 

that, so our preference without a final determination having yet been 15 

made would be to leave those matters in stage two where they exist. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir, and that is a submission I would 

certainly make on behalf of the Council for a whole range of practical 

and timing reasons, that includes matters such as land which is 20 

currently residentially zoned where people seek it to be commercial or 

seek it to be special purposes education and those sorts of things, 

because there is no dispute about it currently being residential, but there 

will obviously be a jurisdictional issue should you determine it through 

this hearing and then have to reconsider it later.   25 

 

 In terms of the Council’s preference for there to be mediation rather 

than caucusing, I suppose there is no particular concern about 

caucusing per se on specific topics of expert evidence, but there is a 

reservation about witness caucusing involving planners essentially 30 

reconsidering the entire chapter because the experience is relatively 

lengthy and there is possibly, in terms of the specific relief being 

brought to a chapter by a submitter is often quite confined and planners 

are required to sit through their entire caucusing session, and there is 

perhaps not the degree of discipline around issues such as specification 35 

of relief, which in the Council’s - - - 

 

SJH:   Sorry, are you now dealing with experts or? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am dealing specifically with planners caucusing. 40 

 

SJH:   You are suggesting no planning conferencing? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Correct, I am, sir. 

 45 

SJH:   Is that because of the experience from strategic directions? 
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MR WINCHESTER:   No, not specifically.  There has now been more than one 

expert planning conferencing sessions and in the Council’s experience 

it has been a bit of a free for all, sir, with perhaps not the same degree 

of discipline around identification of the origin of a change or a 5 

proposed change to a provision as desirable.  I know there are a number 

of submissions that say - - - 

 

SJH:   You are not suggesting it was a horse trading session, are you? 

 10 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, I am not suggesting that, sir.  Again, without 

denigrating planners - - -  

 

SJH:   You are the one on your feet, and there is a lot of them here. 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   I know, sir, I am feeling slightly uncomfortable from 

behind. 

 

SJH:   Most of them are looking at your back as well. 

 20 

MR WINCHESTER:   Exactly. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Not all of them. 

 

  [11.45 am] 25 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, a better approach, sir, is that specific issues are 

brought in mediations.  We have got five it seems, five reasonably 

discrete major topics where some genuine progress could be made at 

mediations around those topics where you have got people focusing on 30 

the specific issues rather than necessarily sitting in a room rewriting the 

chapter, and that is probably grossly simplifying what has happened, 

but it is really about the efficiency of use of time and resources.   

 

SJH:   In relation to the other experts?  There is a number of disciplines that 35 

clearly there is going to be more than one called. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Is there somewhat more discipline in those conferences in your view? 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, there could be, sir, and indeed there is likely to be 

in the specific areas around things like economics, particularly around 

the intensification debate, possibly around engineering and servicing 

matters.  There doesn’t seem to be – possibly traffic as well - - - 45 
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SJH:   Yes, that is one that came to mind. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   - - - to a certain extent, but those are the three main 

disciplines where there may be some advantage in having expert 

caucusing. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   What about urban design caucusing? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:    Well, I suppose that is partially dependent on things 

such as the fate of the sustainability and life stage provisions, although 10 

that is possibly more of an internal issue than specifically an urban 

design issue, but as I understand it there is not that many urban design 

experts being called, in fact possibly just Mr Miskell for the Crown and 

someone for the Council. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, that is what I was just noting, you noted urban 

design, greenfield development - - - 

 

MR WINCHESTER:  And there are already discussions planned on 

intensification issues in particular between the Council and the Crown 20 

so that it may be that we can really boil down the Council and the 

Crown’s positioning quite significantly. 

 

SJH:   So are you talking general mediation with the planners on specific issues 

or with lay submitters as well? 25 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, it would have to be with all parties. 

 

SJH:   Yes, it would. 

 30 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   That is the point. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   But it would be topic specific, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   And the five topics that you identify for this? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Intensification, new neighbourhood living zone, I was 

going to say the sustainability standards, but really it may be pointless, 40 

sir, given the fact that the Council isn’t going to be calling any 

evidence in support of those, and I suppose there is the question as to 

whether any party wants it retained. 
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 Retirement villages seems to be a discrete topic, I have to reserve my 

position in terms of elderly persons’ housing because I am not sure 

whether that fits neatly under that heading or not, I suspect it doesn’t.   

 

SJH:   But it may be another discrete topic? 5 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, it may be, and I think it is become apparent that 

non-residential activities, and particularly the policy approach to non-

residential activities, is a discrete topic.  The only other one I have 

taken a note of is the issue raised by Orion around corridor protection. 10 

 

SJH:   Corridors.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And I think that is - - - 

 15 

SJH:   Which may be a concern to Transpower as well, is it? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:    Yes, so it is an infrastructure matter but it is fairly and 

squarely within the scope of residential. 

 20 

SJH:   Well should, rather than corridors, it be a specific infrastructure 

mediation? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, that may – yes, that may be sensible, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   I suppose the only thing about sustainability is that it is a matter that has 

exercised a great number of submitters and I think it would be useful in 

terms of, if no more, narrowing of issues that they have the opportunity 

to mediate that topic. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Chairman, just raise in relation to that, isn’t there 

another basket of things which is just those general rules and other 

provisions which pertain to residential development which don’t fall 

into any of those specific groups but deal with matters of activity, 

familiarisation for instance? 35 

 

  [11.50 am] 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  And possibly things like fault and location 

requirements and those sorts of nuts and bolts planning issues. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   In terms of the new neighbourhood living zone and 

subdivision provisions, and people have an interest both in rezoning 45 

and the specific provisions, I think it would be sensible if there was a 
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direction, if the Panel was minded to defer the rezoning matters to 

phase 2, or the “me too” matters to phase 2, then any evidence in 

relation to the residential provisions is limited to the provisions 

themselves and not, where possible, stray into site specific 

considerations because otherwise we are essentially opening the door 5 

on site specific zoning. 

 

SJH:   Well that is really the concern we were - - -  

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes.  So those are, I think, all the matters I wanted to 10 

bring to the Panel’s attention.  But I am happy to answer any questions. 

 

SJH:   All right.  And the timing, we mentioned earlier that probably mediation 

is preferable after the Council files its evidence.   

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:    Is that still your view? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   It is, sir.   20 

 

SJH:   And the experts, given the somewhat more limited focus, do you think 

there is any use in attempting that on the basis of will say (ph 1.52) 

statements for whoever conducts the conference and having it before 

they actually file their evidence so we can bring it forward a bit?   25 

 

 It is not something I have discussed with anyone else.  I am just 

floating it because it seems to me that coming out of strategic direction 

– sorry, natural hazards for example, we have now ended up with a 

stage which a lot of the evidence is now non-controversial, and there 30 

remains controversial evidence and it is really, what we are interested 

in, it is the non-controversial evidence we can be given by the Council 

as an example, and then we hear the controversial evidence where we 

have to make factual findings, or choose between experts.  And I was 

just thinking that may be a more efficient way of dividing that up and 35 

saving people’s time in a situation where it is pretty limited anyway. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Well I suppose an orthodox timetable, going 

on what we have done to date and the Panel may have a view as to 

whether that is helpful or not, has been the Council submitting evidence 40 

almost two weeks in advance to the commencement of the hearing, so 

say Friday, it is another Friday the 13th. 

 

SJH:   Well before you go on with that, the one concern which I have 

expressed before, is that the original timetable we put in place was 45 

where we were faced with deadlines, much tighter deadlines, and if we 
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can bring that evidence forward just a little bit it gives a greater scope 

to effectively engage in mediation so it is not under the same degree of 

pressure as it has been.   

 

 Now we are 30 March, that may not be possible for residential and it 5 

might have to wait for some of the later chapters that we have got pre-

hearings on this week, but I think it would be helpful if we stopped 

working on what was a timetable to deal with the specific problem. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Are you suggesting, sir, that - - -  10 

 

SJH:   Well, for example, could you possibly file three weeks before the 

hearing? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   So that would be, the 9th? 15 

 

SJH:   Yes.  Can we bring up a calendar on here for March?  And then as we 

move through these chapters I think we can give more – well everyone 

will have a little bit more time, because that is one of the reasons why 

we’re doing them all this week. 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Yes.  Understood.  The 9th is three weeks 

today, sir.  I suppose it is doable.  A halfway house might be 

Wednesday the 11th, and then leaving a week and a half for submitters’ 

evidence to Friday the 20th, and then rebuttal on Friday the 27th. 25 

 

  [11.55 am] 

 

SJH:   You might almost sell me on the basis it will be three weeks for future 

chapters? 30 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, I think that is a good target, sir.   

 

SJH:   All right.  Like the planners, quite right Judge.   

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well that is a suggestion. 

 

SJH:   That is your suggestion, okay. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   But I will leave it with the Panel. 40 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 

 45 

SJH:   Does the Crown have any submissions on these procedural matters? 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes I do.  In terms of the indication of time limits, sir, 

that is fine for the Crown.  Perhaps if I could address you on the matter 

of expert conferencing and mediation.  

 5 

 Sir, with regards to topics identified by the Council, we are happy with 

those topic suggestions.  Perhaps if I could address first of all, expert 

conferencing, I think the sooner that occurs the better for the point you 

have noted, sir, which is, it has the real potential to narrow the scope of 

contested expert evidence. 10 

 

 So I think the earlier the better, and in terms of the signal you have 

suggested for future proposals, sir, if we can bring that forward if you 

like, and similarly with counsel’s evidence, that would really assist I 

think, sir. 15 

 

 As for mediation, the difficulty with mediation from a practical point of 

view, at least from the Crown’s perspective, sir, is that if mediation 

occurs after the Council’s evidence has been prepared, there are a lot of 

witnesses preparing evidence at the same time, needing to find time for 20 

– well at least some of them, sir, for participation in mediation.  I am 

thinking particularly of our planners and CERA officers.   

 

 So an extended period between a time of the Crown, following its 

evidence after the Council’s provided its evidence would be entirely 25 

helpful.   

 

 You have indicated, sir, perhaps two weeks for future proposals, I think 

that would be good.  One and a half weeks.  It is squeezing it, sir, but I 

think we understand - - - 30 

 

SJH:   Well, if we did it after the filing but before the rebuttal, that gives 

probably six or seven working days for mediations. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   35 

 

SJH:   On this occasion, and when we get to the next chapters we will bring it 

forward.  Would that be - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Well, look we will just work around that, sir. 40 

 

SJH:   Okay. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   But just from the practical point of view. 

 45 

SJH:   I understand the point.   
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MR CARRANCEJA:   To assist with that, sir, what I could also suggest is, if 

Council could be in charge of putting together a mediation timetable of 

topics so - - - 

 5 

SJH:   Well I think that has to be the secretariat, but the secretariat in 

consultation with Council and parties. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sorry, correct sir.   

 10 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   In which case, because not all the topics suggested by 

my learned friend will be of interest to the Crown, sir, so that way we 

could turn up wind as and when required.  Thank you, sir. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Winchester, can I intervene.  Just on this concept that 

you have in mind of mediation rather than expert conferencing.  Am I 

right to hear you say that you anticipated that would be involving 

experts in the planning area? 20 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   The mediations? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, they could, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So would they be in accordance with the Code of 

Conduct, would they be in accordance with the Council instructions? 

 30 

MR WINCHESTER:   They would be in accordance with the Code of Conduct, 

sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   As mediation? 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is not mediation there to resolve issues of difference as to 

the parties position, not the experts positions? 

 40 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well there is a bit of a blurred line there, sir, I accept 

that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So if it came back through - - - 

 45 

SJH:   Well, it is a little more than a blurred line, sorry. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   If the construct was expert conferencing, not mediation, is 

your concern – from what you expressed before, that the boundaries of 

the discussion it could be left to amorphous, to broaden with the 

discussion to occur? 5 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, it is.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But picking up on the Crown’s position as to expert 

foundation for opinions by planners, could not there be scope for some 10 

sort of focused expert conferencing around the question of section 32 

evaluation on the provisions proposed for instance?   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   There could, yes. 

 15 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So the planners and the related experts for instance could 

attend one session in that sense, an economist could be there with a 

planner.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, that could work, sir.   20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Carranceja, I do not know whether that helps you or 

not, but I think it is important for us to actually get the construct right, 

bearing in mind the Code of Conduct requirements on the experts.  

 25 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I appreciate that.  I think the tricky thing for the 

Crown, sir, is that the Crown’s position is advised by its experts so the 

practical situation for the Crown is that representation will likely 

involve experts at mediations or expert conferencing irrespective of 

which process we go for, sir. 30 

 

  [12.00 pm] 

 

 We will be flexible in terms of what suits the Council.  I do take the 

Council – I think the reason for the position, sir, if I take the Council’s 35 

point that its preference is to do mediation after it provides its evidence, 

especially when you are involving positions that affect the lay 

submitters – all I can suggest, sir, is that if the Council sees value in 

early discussions as between planners, we would welcome that, sir.  A 

lot of our positions, for example I will just take a case, New Zealand 40 

Fire Service, that is informed by both operational matters and planning 

matters, that could easily be the subject of either mediation or expert 

conferencing.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mediation has been on behalf of the clients rather than 45 

having experts fill the role of the client.   
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, but from our perspective, sir, our intention 

would be to narrow issues and hopefully resolve them and either would 

provide that avenue, sir.   

 5 

SJH:   Ms Appleyard? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   I am happy with the timetable and I am happy with the – I 

think I am happier with the suggestion that mediation with experts 

present is likely to be a more practical outcome than the caucusing 10 

sessions that certainly our experience with them so far, they have been 

quite constrained.  And I do not know whether they have really resulted 

in some of the practical outcomes that might have been possible had 

they been in a mediated context.   

 15 

SJH:   Is that though, perhaps, because they were more general and not topic 

specific as opposed to this process? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Well I could use the natural hazard one is probably the 

best example.  There was agreement reached on technical matters, but 20 

the planning one of that has not, well certainly in the view of my 

clients, a) there were too many people at it, there were too many 

submissions that were quite detailed, and actually I can give you an 

example of Lyttelton Port Company in that case has just sought a direct 

meeting with Council with the relevant experts there to have a 25 

discussion around its submission, and that seems to have been a better 

process than the actual caucusing end of it.  So I think the idea of 

mediation, but where possible to have the experts available – certainly 

with that experience has probably been a more proactive outcome.   

 30 

SJH:   I find it very difficult to see how we can meet their Code of Conduct 

obligations in a mediation where they are representing the clients and 

not being the independent expert.   

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Well, but so the purpose – so if I can be clear, the purpose 35 

of the mediation is for the client to get their outcome as advised by 

their own experts.  It is not to produce, as opposed to caucusing, a 

document where the experts are agreeing or disagreeing and it comes 

before you. 

 40 

SJH:   So in other words, they are there with a different hat on? 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Yes.  So they are there with a hat on of advising the party 

who is in mediation, and it just seems to help the parties to get a 

resolution, to have their own experts there to advise them.  And if 45 

necessary, talking to other experts to help the clients resolve issues.  It 
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seems to be resulting in better outcomes than sending them off on their 

own and a document might come towards you, but it is not helping the 

parties come back to you with any sort of resolution. 

 

SJH:   Yes.  I think the point the Judge made is the signatories would have to 5 

be the parties, not the experts at a mediation.   

 

MS APPLEYARD:   Absolutely.  Yes. 

 

SJH:   And they have to tread a fairly fine line but they should understand that. 10 

 

MS APPLEYARD:   But the concept of mediation with experts there to advise 

parties is not foreign, and that is what routinely happens with 

mediation.  It is just that we are sort of putting two processes together, 

because the outcome of the caucusing is really to narrow the issues and 15 

partially to help the Panel.  The idea of mediation with experts there to 

help their parties reach resolution is largely to help the parties.  And of 

course the signatories in that case are the parties.   

 

  [12.05 pm] 20 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, before other counsel speak, I am just wondering if I 

could make a suggestion which other counsel might wish to respond to, 

which might assist with a narrowing of conferencing and mediation, sir. 

 25 

 The suggestion, sir, is if the Council is able to provide a tracked change 

version of the residential proposal in light of all the submissions it has 

considered, and including, in particular, its indication, sir, that it will 

not be calling expert evidence on matters to do with Lifemark and 

Homestar issues that, if you like, the sustainability issues. 30 

 

 I think if a tracked change version is provided and they consider even 

the small issue, such as the New Zealand Fire Service issue, sir, that 

could potentially narrow the scope of both expert conferencing and 

mediation, and if that could be done even before evidence is circulated, 35 

sir, that could be, I think, very helpful, but I would like to hear what 

other, perhaps the Panel would like to hear what other counsel think of 

that, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Marks? 40 

 

MS MARKS:   No issue. 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt? 

 45 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Nothing. 
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SJH:   Mr Hardie? 

 

MR HARDIE:   I was only rising to say that perhaps your Honours have not 

really understood.  Mediation invariably is 90 percent of my practice, 5 

and that is all with a great variety- - - 

 

SJH:   I think we understand what mediation is, Mr Hardie, thank you. 

 

MR HARDIE:   But the experts are there always with an expert opinion, and 10 

that is what they bring to the table, but in discussion with other experts 

in a mediation context, they might see that there is another point of 

view. 

 

SJH:   And I think we have also had experience when there are a lot of parties, 15 

and a lot of experts it ends up as a shambles as well, Mr Hardie. 

 

MR HARDIE:   None of my mediations, I should say. 

 

SJH:   Well that depends who you listen to, Mr Hardie, but obviously you think 20 

that is the way it goes.  Ms Roger?  Mr Millar?  Mr Cleary? 

 

MR CLEARY:   I would just like, actually, some clarification in terms of the 

site specific re-zonings, because in terms of Dannemora, for example, 

their land is within phase 1, and so it is going to be re-zoned at some 25 

stage, hopefully within stage 1, from rural to residential. 

 

 Is it the Council’s position that that should be dealt with as part of 

phase 1 or are they looking to actually defer the site specific phase 1 re-

zonings to a later date or not? 30 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   It is the latter, that if it is currently rural then it is phase 

2. 

 

MR CLEARY:   Yes, but it is actually a phase 1 area, as with the vast majority 35 

rural land is in phase- - - 

 

SJH:   Is it in phase 1 residential? 

 

MR CLEARY:   It is in phase 1 residential. 40 

 

SJH:   How can it be if it is zoned rural?  You are talking about the Operative 

Plan? 
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MR CLEARY:   No, it is rural under the Operative Plan, but its proposed new 

neighbourhood zone under phase 1 as part of the greenfield priority 

area. 

 

SJH:   Well that, if it is phase 1, Mr Winchester? 5 

 

MR CLEARY:   It was- - -  

 

SJH:   (INDISTINCT 3.25) all these ones we are hearing about, not in phase 2, 

they are actually on the phase 1 planning maps.  Are you on phase 1 10 

planning map? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Phase 1 planning map, yes. 

 

SJH:   But the others that we have heard from are on the phase 2 planning 15 

maps, is that correct? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Well Mr Hardie’s client is also on phase 1 planning map. 

 

SJH:   Well if it is notified in phase 1, then it is in phase 1. 20 

 

MR CLEARY:   It was a little bit unclear from what my friend, 

Mr Winchester- - -  

 

SJH:   If it is notified in phase 1, it is part of phase 1 Mr Cleary, thank you. 25 

 

MR CLEARY:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Millar?  Ms Walsh? 

 30 

MRS WALSH:   Just two points, sir. 

 

 Firstly, when we are splitting up the topics at hearing, there are a 

couple of parties like Ngāi Tahu Property Limited which do have 

interests across most, if not all, of the residential chapters, so just to 35 

ensure that they do not have to turn up five different times, I just 

wonder if it might be best that were there are those parties, that they 

can just turn up once to one hearing as opposed to making their 

witnesses available four or five times. 

 40 

 I am not sure if that is possible, but certainly from our client’s 

perspective that would save a great deal of costs. 

 

SJH:  Well it might save you, but it would make life a hell of a lot more 

difficult for us.  So we will see. 45 
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MRS WALSH:   Thank you, sir.  And the only other matter I wish to submit on 

is in relation to the topics for mediation and/or caucusing. 

 

  [12.10 pm] 

 5 

 From our experience the caucusing was very, went very well in terms 

of the outcomes it produced, but it did take an awful long time to get 

there, so certainly suggestion for a timetable would be very, very useful 

for parties who have only specific points of relief, having to be there 

for four days is, you know, it is just too long for those parties. 10 

 

 And, if possible if the Secretariat could identify, along with those topic 

areas, actually which provision, objective and policy and rule it relates 

to as well because intensification, for example, that is actually across a 

number of policies and rules, so, yes, just a suggestion, thank you. 15 

 

SJH:   Mr Taylor?  Anybody else?  All right, thank you. 

 

 We have talked about a preliminary schedule which we are now talking 

about the Council evidence being filed on 11 March, the submitters by 20 

20 March.  You suggested rebuttal on the 27th, Mr Winchester, the 

Panel actually does need some time to read things. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir. 

 25 

SJH:   And I would suggest the 25th. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Does anyone have any comments on that timeframe – take issue with it?  30 

All right, well that can be confirmed.  We will not get the full report of 

this meeting on the website tonight, but we will certainly get that 

schedule on the website tonight. 

 

 Any documents filed should make clear the name and the number of 35 

the submitter and if the submitters who wish to be heard on their 

submission wish to update their existing written submission, that 

should be filed also by 20 March.  Be specific as to any relief sought 

and, as I said, include the number and the name. 

 40 

 Now, Mr Winchester, when can you make a tracked change version 

available, assuming you have accepted some of the submissions, of 

course? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I can see the merit in the suggestion.  I suspect because 45 

it is going to be informed by all of the evidence which supports the 
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Council’s case, probably when the Council’s evidence is filed, so 11 

March. 

 

SJH:   Well, just thinking aloud, if we could bring that forward it would assist 

in the expert conferencing in other areas where it has been 5 

acknowledged that expert conferencing may be of use. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   I mean, presumably by now some decision has been made whether to 10 

accept or reject submissions. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well there are discussions taking place at the moment 

and detailed consideration being given to some submissions, sir.  Some 

of the more wide-ranging ones.  The issue will be some of the matters 15 

raised possibly by lay-submitters in terms of the clarity of those 

submissions. 

 

 (INDISTINCT 3.47) Just see if I can find Mr Blair, I think- - - 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Presumably if there is a clarity issue, Mr Winchester, you- 

- -  

 

SJH:   Mr Blair you can come and approach Mr Winchester. 

 25 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well just really about the practicality. 

 

SJH:   Yes, no, understood. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, Mr Blair suggests Monday the 9th.  I know it is not 30 

much of an advancement. 

 

SJH:   No, it is, and we are grateful, Mr Blair, because we know you will be the 

one bearing the workload on that, so we will order that to be provided 

to all submitters and the Panel by Monday the 9th. 35 

 

 The other is the issues document and when you can have that available, 

because I really think that that is a document the sooner it is available 

the better. 

 40 

MR WINCHESTER:   End of this week, sir – the 20th? 

 

SJH:   That would be excellent, thank you.  So that is the? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Friday, the 20th. 45 
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SJH:   Friday 20 February, thank you.  Now, just before we go on, Dr Mitchell, 

you had a point about what you were expecting in the Council’s 

evidence that you wanted to stress? 

 

  [12.15 pm] 5 

 

DR MITCHELL:   If I could, thank you, sir.  One thing that would help me and 

I think the Panel in general, would be to get a clear statement in the 

Council’s evidence as to not just what the provisions that are proposed 

are, but why they are considered more appropriate than some of the 10 

alternatives that have been provided in evidence. 

 

 You will appreciate the job that we have to do and it would be good to 

have an evidential basis from you to help us to do that specifically in 

relation to the matters that have arisen since the plan was notified in a 15 

response to the submitters. 

 

 And I think, similarly, in relation to mediations, oftentimes a mediation 

will say “well we have agreed this, we have not agreed that”, it would 

be very helpful to get an understanding of where agreement has been 20 

reached, what is the basis on which the agreement has been reached on 

a factual or an evaluative basis, rather than just saying “we have agreed 

these provisions”. 

 

 We would be greatly assisted in understanding on what basis they have 25 

been agreed. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Understood, sir, and we will make sure that the 

evidence as best as possible prepared in that way. 

 30 

DR MITCHELL:   Thank you, that would be very helpful. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just in terms of the appropriateness matter, Mr 

Winchester, bearing in mind the requirements of section 32. 

 35 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, well that was what immediately sprang to mind 

when Dr Mitchell raised that, sir.  Yes, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Perhaps a difficulty experienced earlier, so we do not want to go there 

again. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   And I am sure you do not either. 

 45 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, thank you. 
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SJH:   All right, well we will prepare a report which will include timetabling 

around expert witnesses and caucusing.  We note the division of 

subjects which seems to us sensible and we will follow those in both 

areas.  We accept what has been said about the mediation, and the 5 

advantages of it. 

 

 We will give some thought, however, to whether or not it might be 

useful for planners to meet in an expert conferencing setting earlier 

than that before the evidence as the Crown has suggested. 10 

 

 Are there any other issues other parties want to raise? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sorry, sir.  I am not another party, but something has 

just occurred to me in terms of the timetable.  Legal submission and 15 

notices to cross-examine. 

 

SJH:   Yes, I am sorry, thank you.  I think we have consistently made leave to 

cross-examine on the same date as the filing of rebuttal evidence? 

 20 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   So, leave to cross-examine will have to be filed by the- - - 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   25th, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And legal submissions – are you wanting those in 

advance? 30 

 

SJH:   Well we would indicate that we will expect, again as we have 

throughout, very brief opening legal submissions, but more fulsome 

closing submissions.  It would be helpful to us if you could file them in 

advance, but given the time constraints, if you hand them in at the 35 

hearing that is acceptable to us. 

 

 We will then timetable at the end of the evidence the closing 

submissions and we would require those to be filed in advance, but for 

opening we will follow the process to date. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   I am not sure if I have mentioned that, but I should certainly put this – 

we have indicated already that it seemed to us sensible that the Council 45 

should call all its evidence, the Crown should call all its evidence, and 
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it may be that people who cover a number of areas – you might come 

into this, Ms Walsh – we could have that evidence right at the start, and 

then we will go into the subject matter blocks that have been indicated 

by the caucusing and experts and suchlike. 

 5 

 So the Secretariat will look to do that, but that is the expectation at the 

moment and the Secretariat can also discuss with Council the preferred 

order. 

 

 Limitations on cross-examination I did not mention, but again it will be 10 

15 minutes, but with liberty to apply for a longer time of expert 

witnesses if it is considered appropriate. 

 

 Anything from any counsel?  Anything from any lay-submitters?  Any 

queries or clarification? 15 

 

MS SEATON:   Thank you – for submitter 788.  Sir, just to clarify, I am taking 

from the discussion that we are going to box ahead and try to deal with 

the new neighbourhood zone provisions for residential chapter quite 

separately to the subdivision new neighbourhood provisions, which are 20 

inter-related?  Yes?  Okay, thank you. 

 

  [12.20 pm] 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Yes, I am sorry, I think I was out of the room.  Are you 25 

still planning to proceed with the hearings as timetabled? 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Yes, thank you, and finishing about the 20th of, in fact, 30 

April? 

 

SJH:   We hope so. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   You hope so?  Thank you. 35 

 

SJH:   Whether that is possible remains to be seen, but what process we make, 

but that is the schedule we have to aim for at the moment to meet our 

overall timetable. 

 40 

 Yes, the new neighbourhood one, did you, I mean it is as notified- - - 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, I addressed that specifically when I raised this 

topic, sir, and it would be artificial to separate the subdivision aspects 

from the land use, so the whole package should be considered in- - - 45 
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SJH:   And you will be calling evidence to cover all of that? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, yes, sir.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:   Right. 5 

 

MR TAYLOR:   Just as a point of clarification, Mr Winchester is to provide 

the issues summary by the end of this week.  Is that to include 

discussion on the out of phase 1, phase 2 submissions and when they 

should be heard – when are we going to expect to have some sort of 10 

decision/determination on that matter? 

 

SJH:   Mr Winchester, I thought we had actually ruled on that, that the- - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Phase 2. 15 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, that was my submission as to whether that- - - 

 

SJH:   It is part of phase 2 it is not yet notified, it is under phase 2. 

 20 

MR TAYLOR:   I thought it was still subject to discussion? 

 

SJH:   Sorry? 

 

MR TAYLOR:   I thought it was still subject to discussion, but if it is not- - - 25 

 

SJH:   Well if you wish to discuss it with the Council you can, but that is our 

ruling at the moment.  You can always come back and apply any time 

you like, but to jump the gun we take some persuading. 

 30 

MR TAYLOR:   We do not want you to jump the gun. 

 

SJH:   No, of course you do not.  I just had a note passed to me questioning 

whether we need 20 minutes for all experts to summarise their 

evidence.  We have allowed that to date and if you give an expert 20 35 

minutes they will take it, of course.  They are a bit like lawyers in that 

regard and judges. 

 

 I think what we have got to ask counsel to do is stress to their 

witnesses, and we have not always had this to date, that we are looking 40 

for a highlights passage – not someone just reading their executive 

summary. 

 

 We have already read it and the more succinct they can be the more 

effective it generally is, so rather than change the specific ruling, we 45 

will ask Council to take it up with their witnesses. 
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 Anything else anyone wants to raise?  All right, thank you.  We are 

grateful to the cooperation of everybody, and we will adjourn until this 

afternoon. 

 5 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 12.23 PM ACCORDINGLY 


